
CITY OF CEDARBURG 
MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL 

MAY 14, 2018 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
A meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, will be held on 
Monday, May 14, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, 
WI, in the second floor Council Chambers.  
            

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  - Mayor Mike O’Keefe 
 

2. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
4.        ROLL CALL:  Present – 

 
 
 

Common Council – Mayor Mike O’Keefe, Council 
Members Dan von Bargen, Jack Arnett, Kristin Burkart, 
Rick Verhaalen, Garan Chivinski, Patricia Thome, and 
Rod Galbraith 
 

5. STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES* - April 30, 2018 
 
7. COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS** Comments from citizens on a 

listed agenda item will be taken when the item is addressed by the Council.  At this time 
individuals can speak on any topic not on the agenda for up to 5 minutes, time 
extensions at the discretion of the Mayor.  No action can be taken on items not listed 
except as a possible referral to committees, individuals or a future Council agenda item. 

 
8. PRESENTATIONS 
 
* A. Presentation of the 2017 Audit Report; and direction thereon 
 
 B. Presentation by Cedarburg School District on the Long Range Master Plan for 

the School District 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS 

 
* A. Consider Resolution No. 2018-12 Providing for the Sale of Approximately 

$1,245,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2018A; and action 
thereon  

 
* B. Consider Initial Resolution No. 2018-13 Authorizing General Obligation Bonds in 

an Amount Not to Exceed $3,425,000 for Community Development Projects in 
Tax Incremental District No. 4; and action thereon 

 
* C. Consider Resolution No. 2018-14 Directing Publication of Notice to Electors; and 

action thereon 
 

1 of 320



* D. Consider Resolution No. 2018-15 Providing for the Sale of Not to Exceed 
$3,425,000 Taxable General Obligation Community Development Bonds, Series 
2018B; and action thereon 

 
* E. Consider recommendation of Police Chief to deny new operator’s license 

application of Christopher R. Hall; and action thereon 
 
* F. Consider request to begin the process to hire a Police Officer due to an 

anticipated retirement; and action thereon 
 
* G. Consider 2017 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) for the 

Wastewater Treatment Plant and Resolution No. 2018-16 accepting the Report; 
and action thereon (Public Works & Sewerage Comm., 5/10/18) 

 
* H. Consider process/policy when “Class B” liquor licenses become available; and 

action thereon 
 
* I. Consider request for funds to add power at Cedar Creek Park for Summer 

Sounds; and action thereon 
 

* J. Consider quote received for construction of the Prairie View Park Shelter; and 
action thereon 

 
* K. Annual Review and Certification of Code of Ethics 
 
* L. Consider payment of bills dated 04/26/18, transfers for the period 04/28/18 

through 05/11/18, and payroll for the period 04/22/18 through 05/05/18; and 
action thereon 

 
*** M. Consider License Applications; and action thereon 
    

 1. Consider approval of new Operator’s License applications for the period 
ending June 30, 2018 for Bryce M. Burke and Angela M. Bushee 

  
 2. Consider approval of 2018-2019 alcohol, operator, and cigarette licenses 

(see attached list) 
 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
* A. Consider Ordinance No. 2018-04 amending Sec. 11-2-7 of the Municipal Code 

pertaining to the placement of chairs in advance of the annual 4th of July parade; 
and action thereon 

 
 B. Consider Mayor O’Keefe’s appointment to the Plan Commission (exp. 04/30/20); 

and action thereon 
 
11.       REPORTS OF CITY OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS 
 
* A. Administrator’s Report 
  1. 2018 First Quarter Financial Report 
* B.  Building Inspector’s Report – April 2018 
* C. Fire Inspection Report – April 2018 

2 of 320



12. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
** A. Comments and suggestions from citizens 
 B. Comments and announcements by Council Members  

C. Mayor’s Report  
 1. Proclamation – May is Older Americans Months 

 
13. ADJOURNMENT – CLOSED SESSION 
 

It is anticipated the Common Council will adjourn to closed session pursuant to State 
Statutes 19.85(1)(g) to confer with legal counsel who is rendering oral or written advice 
concerning strategy to be adopted by the Council with respect to litigation in which it is 
or is likely to become involved, more specifically, to discuss Ozaukee County Case 
Number 2017CV000469 Steven W. Banas et al vs. City of Cedarburg et al, and State 
Statutes 19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchasing of public properties, the 
investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business whenever 
competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session, more specifically, to 
consider cellular tower leases for location on the recently constructed monopole on 
Western Avenue.  Approval of February 12, 2018 closed session minutes. 

 
14. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
Individual members of various boards, committees, or commissions may attend the above meeting.  It 
is possible that such attendance may constitute a meeting of a City board,  committee or commission 
pursuant to State ex. rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, 173 Wis. 2d 553, 494 NW 2d 408 (1993).  
This notice does not authorize attendance at either the above meeting or the Badke Meeting, but is 
given solely to comply with the notice requirements of the open meeting law. 
 
 
* Information attached for Council; available through City Clerk’s Office.   
** Citizen comments should be primarily one-way, from citizen to the Council.  Each citizen who wishes to 

speak   shall be accorded one opportunity at the beginning of the meeting and one opportunity at the end 
of the meeting.  Comments should be kept brief.  If the comment expressed concerns a matter of public 
policy, response from the Council will be limited to seeking information or acknowledging that the citizen 
has been understood.  It is out of order for anyone to debate with a citizen addressing the Council or for 
the Council to take action on a matter of public policy.  The Council may direct that the concern be placed 
on a future agenda.  Citizens will be asked to state their name and address for the record and to speak 
from the lectern for the purposes of recording their comments. 

*** Information available through the Clerk’s Office. 
 

UPON REASONABLE NOTICE, EFFORTS WILL BE MADE TO 
ACCOMMODATE THE NEEDS OF INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES. 
PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AT (262) 375-7606 

E-MAIL:  cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us 
05/10/18 ckm  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3 of 320

mailto:cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us


 
Consider approval of alcohol licenses for the period ending June 30, 2019: 
 
 
Class “A” fermented malt beverage and “Class A” cider only (off-premise consumption 
only): 
 
Speedway LLC, PO Box 1580, Springfield, OH  45501, Michael R. Weber, Agent, premises to 
be licensed:  W63 N121 Washington Avenue, known as Speedway 4203. 
 
 
“Class A” intoxicating liquor (off-premise consumption only): 
 
The Shinery Neenah LLC, 4301 W. Wisconsin Avenue, Appleton, WI  54913, Elizabeth 
Reissmann, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N706 Washington Avenue, known as The 
Shinery. 
 
 
Class “A” fermented malt beverage and “Class A” intoxicating liquor (off-premise 
consumption only): 
 
Bonus Inc., dba Olsen’s Piggly Wiggly, W61 N286 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  
53012, Ryan L. Olson, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W61 N286 Washington Avenue, 
known as Olsen’s Piggly Wiggly. 
 
Toto’s Inc., 4600 W. Brown Deer Road, Brown Deer, WI  53223, Krystal L. Poppe, Agent, 
premises to be licensed:  W63 N157 Washington Avenue, known as Otto’s Wine and Spirits. 
 
Super Sales USA Inc., PO Box 493, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Douglas Gall, Agent, premises to 
be licensed:  W62 N174 Washington Avenue, known as Citgo Super Sales Cedarburg. 
 
Wisconsin CVS Pharmacy, LLC, One CVS Drive, M/C 1160, Woonsocket, RI  02895, Dione 
Jeffrey, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N152 Washington Avenue, known as CVS 
Pharmacy #8775. 
 
Walgreen Co., P.O. Box 901, Deerfield, IL  60015, Brett D. Zingsheim, Agent, premises to be 
licensed:  W62 N190 Washington Avenue, known as Walgreens #13620. 
 
 
Class “B” fermented malt beverage and “Class B” intoxicating liquor (on or off-premise 
consumption): 
 
Ernie’s Wine Bar LLC, N49 W5471 Portland Road, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Benjamin M. Grade, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  N49 W5471 Portland Road, known as Ernie’s Wine Bar. 
 
Stagecoach 520 LLC, W61 N520 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Anne M. 
Conley, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W61 N520 Washington Avenue, known as 
Stagecoach Inn/The Five 20 Pub. 
 
RCB Group Inc., W63 N699 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Richard C. Buser, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N699 Washington Avenue, known as Maxwell’s. 
 

4 of 320



C. Wieslers Inc., W61 N493 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Mike G. Jackson, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  W61 N493 Washington Avenue, known as C. Wieslers. 
 
Kowloon Chinese Restaurant Inc., W63 N145 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, 
Henry A. Liang, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N145 Washington Avenue, known as 
Kowloon Chinese Restaurant. 
 
Fineco LLC, W63 N140 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Daniel S. Pals, Agent, 
premises to be licensed:  W63 N140 Washington Avenue, known as Grapes and Tastes. 
 
North 48 Inc., W62 N599 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Peter A. Olds, Agent, 
premises to be licensed:  W62 N599 Washington Avenue, known as North 48. 
 
Morton’s Wisconsinn LLC, N56 W6339 Center Street, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Chris Morton, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  N56 W6339 Center Street, known as Mortons Wiscons Inn. 
 
Thomas Restaurant, LLC, W63 N688 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Nicole 
Thomas, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N688 Washington Avenue, known as 
Tomaso’s. 
 
L&G Express Bar LLC, N50 W5586 Portland Road, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Larry D. 
Weidmann, Agent, premises to be licensed:  N50 W5586 Portland Road, known as L&G 
Express Bar. 
 
Peter Wollner Post No. 288 of the American Legion, W57 N481 Hilbert Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  
53012, James A. Lee, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W57 N481 Hilbert Avenue, known as 
Peter Wollner Post No. 288 of the American Legion. 
 
Cedarburg Cultural Center Inc., W62 N546 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, 
Stephanie Hayes, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W62 N546 Washington Avenue, known as 
Cedarburg Cultural Center. 
 
RCB Group Inc., W62 N550 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Richard C. Buser, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  W62 N550 Washington Avenue, known as The Stonewall 
Pub. 
 
Cedars III LLC, W53 N404 Park Lane, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Michael F. Kowalkowski, Agent, 
premises to be licensed:  W53 N404 Park Lane, known as Cedars III. 
 
MacBeebs LLC, Owned by Catherine Heebner, 3041 N. 75th Street, Milwaukee, WI  53210, 
Catherine Heebner, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W62 N238 Washington Avenue, known 
as Farmstead. 
 
Anvil Pub & Grille LLC, N70 W6340 Bridge Road, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Donna M. Taylor, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  N70 W6340 Bridge Road, known as Anvil Pub & Grille. 
 
Settlers Inn LLC, W63 N657 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Joan D. Dorsey, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N657 Washington Avenue, known as Settlers Inn. 
 
AT JJ’s LLC, W62 N559 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Ambur A. Vance, Agent, 
premises to be licensed:  W62 N559 Washington Avenue, known as AT JJ’s. 
 

5 of 320



Cedarburg Art Museum & Society, Inc., W63 N675 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  
53012, Pamela Caserta Hugdahl, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N675 Washington 
Avenue, known as Cedarburg Art Museum. 
 
Phoa Brothers, Inc., W62 N547 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Jimmy Phoa, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  W62 N547 Washington Avenue, known as New Fortune. 
 
GG & KR LLC, W62 N630 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Gordon M. Goggin, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  W62 N630 Washington Avenue, known as The Stilt House. 
 
 
Class “B” fermented malt beverage (on or off-premise consumption) and “Class C” 
wine (on-premise consumption): 
 
Morales Restaurants LLC, 2550 Country Aire Drive, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Debra A. 
McQuaid, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N674 Washington Avenue, known as Vintage 
Café & City Deli. 
 
Donna M. Taylor, 1441 Keup Road, Grafton, WI  53024, premises to be licensed:  N70 W6340 
Bridge Road, known as Cream & Crepe Café. 
 
P.J. Piper LLC, W61 N514 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53024, Judith Fergadakis, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  W61 N514 Washington Avenue, known as P.J. Piper 
Pancake House. 
 
Brandywine LLC, W61 N480 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Andrew C. Wilson, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  W61 N480 Washington Avenue, known as Brandywine. 
 
J.L. Joyce Enterprises Inc., W63 N144 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53024, James P. 
Joyce, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N144 Washington Avenue, known as Jim’s 
Grille. 
 
Otte Restaurants LLC, W63 N540 Hanover Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, John M. Otte, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N540 Hanover Avenue, known as Romano’s Pizzeria. 
 
Two Crafty Chicks LLC, W61 N506 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Kathleen 
Hartzheim, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W61 N506 Washington Avenue, known as Thirsty 
Hammer Workshop. 
 
Java House Café & Micro Roaster LLC, W63 N653 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  
53012, Scott A. Sidney, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N653 Washington Avenue, 
known as Java House Café & Micro Roaster. 
 
Famous Sals of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, Inc., W61 N635 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  
53012, Bekim Elmazi, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N635 Washington Avenue, known 
as Sals Famous Pizza. 
 
Baehmann’s Golf Center Inc., W73 N1122 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Kurt 
Baehmann, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W73 N1122 Washington Avenue, known as 
Baehmann’s Golf Center. 
 
 

6 of 320



“Class B” winery license (on or off-premise consumption): 
 
Wollersheim Winery Inc., 7876 Hwy 188, PO Box 87, Prairie Du Sac, WI  53578, Constance J. 
Niebauer, Agent, premises to be licensed:  N70 W6340 Bridge Road, known as Cedar Creek 
Winery. 
 
The Chiselled Grape Winery LLC, W64 N713 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, 
Harald Tomesch, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W64 N713 Washington Avenue, known as 
The Chiselled Grape Winery. 
 

 
Consider approval of Cigarette Licenses for period ending June 30, 2019: 
 
Bonus Inc. (Olsen’s Piggly Wiggly) 
W61 N286 Washington Avenue 
 

Super Sales USA, Inc. (Citgo) 
W62 N174 Washington Avenue 

Fineco, LLC (Grapes & Tastes) 
W63 N140 Washington Avenue 
 

Toto’s Inc. (Otto’s Wine & Spirits) 
W63 N157 Washington Avenue 

Speedway, LLC (#4203) 
W63 N121 Washington Avenue 
 
 

Walgreen Co. (#13620) 
W62 N190 Washington Avenue 

Consider approval of new Operator’s Licenses for period ending June 30, 2019 
 
Dawn M. Brooks 
Bryce M. Burke 
Dylan J. Krivoshein 

Brian A. Kurlinski 
William A. Langholz 
Robert R. Vanderloop 
 

 
Consider approval of renewal Operator’s Licenses for period ending June 30, 2019 

 

Hannah C. Aronson 
Deborah Bath 
Teia J. Batiansila 
Roger E. Behling 
Nicholas L. Behling 
Tyler J. Bell 
Lindsey J. Berndt 
Michael C. Besaw 
Wendy S. Bolz 
Michael Bourbonais 
Nicholas A. Boylen 
Lois M. Bray 
Dawn M. Brooks 
Daniel M. Burback 
Elizabeth M. Bursten 
Pamela M. Caserta Hugdahl 
Shane R. Cassidy 
Joel M. Christophersen 
Jordan Z. Cole 
William W. Conley 

Paul G. Goetz 
Eric E. Grassel 
Jeremy M. Gruenweller 
David B. Haberman 
Angela L. Habermann 
Christine M. Habich 
Dustin J. Halyburton 
Andrew W. Heidtke 
Jill Hepburn 
Sarah L. Hepburn 
Leslie E. Heppe 
James M. Hintz 
Sam D. Hoffmann 
Teri L. Jackson 
Brian M. Jackson 
Katherine A. Jackson 
Dennis F. Jaeger 
Kristin V. Kamke 
Charles A. Kison 
Randall H. Kison 

Sheryl L. Pals 
Allen W. Parnell 
David J. Polacek 
Bryan J. Price 
John L. Pryor 
Ronald H. Reimer 
Patrice J. Renfrow 
John W. Riege 
Erin A. Riley 
Elizabeth F. Riley 
Zachary R. Ringel 
Mark D. Roberts 
Ann M. Ruska 
James M. Salp 
Tyler T. Schemenauer 
Tori L. Schone 
Sherri A. Scofield 
Thomas J. Shippen 
Richard S. Siefert 
Eric L. Siudak 

7 of 320



Callen L. Cummings 
Megan T. Czisny 
Benjamin J. Dereszynski 
Edward J. Dettloff 
Shirley A. DeVona 
Keri L. Dietrich 
Mary E. Dolezal 
Monica J. Dorsey 
Thomas M. Dorsey 
Shelley M. Doxtator 
Jonathan P. Dunne 
Eric W. Engstrom 
Suzanne V. Ernst 
Jacqueline J. Ertl 
Kim M. Esselmann 
Judi K. Even 
Blaine E. Gibson 
Matthew W. Gifford 

Jake E. Krajenka 
Edmund A. Kwaterski Jr. 
James D. Lake 
Diane M. Lane 
James J. Levine 
Pamela A. Lidington 
Dennis H. Loberger 
Craig E. Lowdermilk 
Karissa J. Mathias 
Bradley J. Mayer 
Brandon J. McCarthy 
Saul Benjamin Morales McQuaid 
Carrie G. Mueller 
Jason D. Mutza 
Sharon L. Nelson 
Jamie N. Nevins 
Richard H. Nielsen 
Daniel S. Pals 

John M. Striepling 
Kim K. Stroessner 
Jeff M. Theisen 
Jodie E. Thierfelder 
Scott R. Thomas 
Spencer D. Thomas 
Sandra J. Tietyen 
Kelly E. Timple 
David L. Vahsholtz 
Richard L. von Trebra 
Jessica M. Wallace 
Clarey Wamhoff 
Kenneth L. Weintraub 
Patrick R. Weyer 
Troy A. White 
Allison E. Wray 
John E. Zarling 
James W. Zipter 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 of 320



 CITY OF CEDARBURG     CC20180430-1 
                                                             COMMON COUNCIL UNAPPROVED 

APRIL 30, 2018 
        
A regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, was held on 
Monday, April 30, 2018, at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, second floor, Council 
Chambers.   Mayor O’Keefe called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL: Present  -  Common Council:   Mayor Mike O’Keefe, Council Members Dan 

von Bargen,  Jack Arnett, Kristin Burkart, Rick Verhaalen, Garan 
Chivinski,  Patricia Thome, Rod Galbraith 

    
                       Also Present - City Administrator/Treasurer Christy Mertes, Director of Public 

Works and Engineering Tom Wiza, City Clerk Constance McHugh,  
Parks, Recreation and Forestry Director Hilvo, City Attorney Mike 
Herbrand, Police Commissioner Linda Krieg; interested citizens and 
news media 

 
STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
At Mayor O’Keefe’s request, City Clerk McHugh verified that notice of this meeting was provided 
to the public by forwarding the agenda to the City’s official newspaper, the News Graphic, to all 
news media and citizens who requested copies, and by posting in accordance with the Wisconsin 
Open Meetings law.  Citizens present were welcomed and encouraged to provide their input during 
the citizen comment portion of the meeting. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member von Bargen, to approve 
the minutes of the April 17, 2018 meeting.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSIDER BIDS RECEIVED FOR REPLACEMENT OF THE FIRE DEPARTMENT 
CONCRETE DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AT W61 N631 MEQUON AVENUE 
 
Three bids were received for the replacement of the concrete driveway and sidewalk at the fire 
station.  The low bid was from T. P. Concrete, Inc. in the amount of $41,753.75. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Verhaalen, to award the 
contract for the Fire Department concrete driveway and sidewalk replacement to T.P. Concrete, Inc. 
in the amount of $41,753.75.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 2018-07 AMENDING SEC. 10-1-27 OF THE MUNICIPAL 
CODE TO PROHIBIT PARKING ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF JACKSON STREET FROM 
THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF WASHINGTON AVENUE TO A POINT 50’ 
WEST 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member Thome, to adopt 
Ordinance No. 2018-07 amending Sec. 10-1-27 of the Municipal Code to prohibit parking on the 

9 of 320



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180430-2 
APRIL 30, 2018 UNAPPROVED 
 
south side of Jackson Street from the west right-of-way line of Washington Avenue to a point 50’ 
west.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSIDER CLOSING PORTLAND ROAD BETWEEN MILL STREET AND HILBERT 
AVENUE FROM 5:00 A.M. TO 3:00 P.M. ON JULY 28, 2018 FOR THE WOMEN’S 
CENTURY BIKE RIDE AND DEMONSTRATIONS 
 
Cindy Petted, from Wisconsin Women Cycling, said the 4th annual Women’s Century Bike Ride 
and related activities will occur on July 28, 2018.  Portland Road between Mill Street and Hilbert 
Avenue will need to be closed from 5:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. as groups of bikers leave on the hour 
starting at 6:00 a.m., vendors need parking, and for the safety of children in the programs.  
Neighbors in the area are notified and provided with a contact number if they need access. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Burkart, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to approve the 
closing of Portland Road between Mill Street and Hilbert Avenue from 5:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. on 
July 28, 2018 for the Women’s Century Bike Ride and demonstrations.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
CONSIDER CLOSING PORTLAND ROAD BETWEEN THE EASTERN EDGE OF MILL 
STREET AND THE EASTERN EDGE OF CEDAR CREEK PARK FROM 5:00 A.M. – 7:30 
A.M. ON JULY 29, 2018 FOR THE WOMEN’S CENTURY BIKE RIDE 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member von Bargen, to approve the 
closing of Portland Road between the eastern edge of Mill Street and the eastern edge of Cedar 
Creek Park from 5:00 a.m. to 7:30 a.m. on July 29, 2018 for the Women’s Century Bike Ride.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSIDER RECOMMENDATION OF PUBLIC ART COMMISSION TO PLACE PIANO 
OUTSIDE AT THE COMMUNITY CENTER GYM 
 
Director Hilvo said the Public Art Commission is recommending the placement of a public piano in 
front of the Community Center Gym to promote art in the City.  This will be a temporary 
installation from June to September.  If there are any issues, the piano will be removed or the hours 
it can be played will be limited.  He will be working with local tuners to keep the piano tuned.  The 
piano will be tastefully painted with colorful circles.   The Landmarks Commission has also 
reviewed the concept and recommended its placement. 
 
Council Member Thome thanked Council Member Arnett for this idea.  Council Member Arnett 
confirmed the piano can be removed if problems occur. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member Thome, to approve the 
placement of a piano outside the Community Center Gym from June to September.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
 

10 of 320



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180430-3 
APRIL 30, 2018 UNAPPROVED 
 
CONSIDER MAYOR O’KEEFE’S COUNCIL MEMBER APPOINTMENTS 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Verhaalen, to approve 
Mayor O’Keefe’s Council Member appointments to Boards, Committees and Commissions as 
follows: 
 
Council Member Dan von Bargen (1st District) 
 Public Works and Sewerage Commission 
 Ad hoc Debt/Investment Advisory Committee 
 Mid-Moraine Legislative Committee 
 
Council Member Jack Arnett (2nd District) 
 Economic Development Board, Chair 
 Community Development Authority 
  
Council Member Kristin Burkart (3rd District) 
 Landmarks Commission 
 Public Art Commission 
 
Council Member Rick Verhaalen (4th District) 
 Parks, Recreation and Forestry Board 
 Ad hoc Mayors Enhancement Award Committee 
 Ad hoc Debt/Investment Advisory Committee 
 
Council Member Garan Chivinski (5th District) 
 Library Board 
 Personnel Committee 
 
Council Member Patricia Thome (6th District) 
 (Council President) 
 (Plan Commission Council Representative) 
 Personnel Committee - Chair  
 Light and Water Commission 
 
Council Member Rod Galbraith (7th District) 
 Personnel Committee 
 Festival Committee Liaison 
 Ad hoc Debt/Investment Advisory Committee  
 Mid-Moraine Legislative Committee (Alternate) 
 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 
CONSIDER MAYOR O’KEEFE’S APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES AND 
COMMISSIONS 
 
Motion made by Council Member Verhaalen, seconded by Council Member Thome, to approve 
Mayor O’Keefe’s appointments to various Boards, Committees and Commissions as follows: 

11 of 320



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180430-4 
APRIL 30, 2018 UNAPPROVED 
 
Board of Appeals- 3 year term 
 
Jay Stutz, Chair   (04/30/21)   
Doug Yip    (04/30/21)  
Edward Foy    (04/30/21) 
Megan Torres    (04/30/20) First alternate 
*TBD     (04/30/19) Second alternate 
 
Board of Review – 5 year term 
 
Jim Myers    (04/30/23) 
 
Economic Development Board – 3 year term 
 
Council Member Arnett - Chair 
 
DJ Burns    (04/30/21)  
Joe Kassander    (04/30/21) 
Jim Pape    (04/30/21) 
Eric Stelter    (04/30/21) 
Sara Dunstone    (04/30/21) 
 
Landmarks Commission – 3 year term 
 
Judy Jepson    (04/30/21) 
Tom Kubala    (04/30/21) 
James Temmer   (04/30/21) 
Doug Yip, Alternate   (04/30/19) 
 
Library Board - 3 year term 
 
Deb Goeks    (04/30/21) 
Todd Bugnacki, School Rep  (04/30/21) 
 
Parks, Recreation and Forestry Board – 2 year term 
 
Glenn Herold         (04/30/20) 
Terry Wagner    (04/30/20) 
 
Plan Commission – 3 year term 
 
Heather Cain    (04/30/21) 
Adam Voltz    (04/30/21)  
*TBD     (04/30/20)  
 
 
 

12 of 320



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180430-5 
APRIL 30, 2018 UNAPPROVED 
 
Public Art Commission – 2 year term 
 
Sue Schrader    (04/30/20) 
Paul Yank    (04/30/20) 
Lisa Brobst    (04/30/20) 
  
Public Works and Sewerage Commission – 2 year term 
 
Some have one year and some have two year appointments to stagger terms 
 
Bill Oakes    (04/30/20)     
Sandy Beck    (04/40/19) 
Charles Schumacher   (04/30/20) 
Robert Dries    (04/30/19) 
Gary Graham    (04/30/19) 
Judy Guse    (04/30/20) 
Ryan Hammetter   (04/30/20) 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
*To be determined.  Openings remain on the Plan Commission and the Board of Appeals (alt). 
 
PAYMENT OF BILLS 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member von Bargen, to approve the 
payment of the bills for the period 04/05/18 through 04/18/18, transfers for the period 04/05/18 
through 04/27/18, and payroll for the period 03/25/18 through 04/07/18.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
LICENSE APPLICATIONS 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to authorize the 
issuance of a new Operators license for the period ending June 30, 2018 to Jeannie N. Heins.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Verhaalen, seconded by Council Member Galbraith, to approve 
the issuance of a 6 month Class “B” Beer license to C. Wiesler’s Inc., Michael G. Jackson, Agent, 
for the Cedar Creek Park Concession Stand, N52 W5925 Portland Road, from May 1, 2018 to 
November 1, 2018.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes said the My Civic app has been downloaded by 373 residents 
thus far. She said it should be beneficial to both the public and staff. 
 
City Clerk McHugh reminded the Council that May 14 will be the only Council meeting in May. 
 

13 of 320



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180430-6 
APRIL 30, 2018 UNAPPROVED 
 
COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS BY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
Council Member Arnett said he would like to thank Director Hilvo for getting 1,000 trees trimmed 
this past winter. 
 
Council Member Thome said the Rotary sponsored the planting of 60+ trees.  She said the event 
was well organized by City Forester Kevin Westphal. 
 
Council Member von Bargen said he would like to invite constituents in the 1st Aldermanic District 
to a listening session he will be holding this summer.  He asked if this type of event must be a 
publicly noticed meeting.  Attorney Herbrand said gatherings constitute a meeting only if a quorum 
of Council Members are present. 
 
Council Member Chivinski asked Council Member von Bargen to share his ideas and experience as 
he is thinking of holding a similar event for 5th Aldermanic District constituents. 
 
Council Member von Bargen said that while he understands the R&R Quarry is in the town of 
Cedarburg and is a town issue, he would like this Council to address the issue.  He said he would 
like more information on the groundwater and the makeup of the source material placed in the 
quarry from 2005 to 2014. 
 
Council Member Arnett suggested Council Member von Bargen speak to the Economic 
Development Board member that has experience with environmental matters to discuss this issue.  
Council Member Verhaalen suggested Council Member von Bargen talk to Light and Water 
General Manager Lythjohan.  City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes said she will talk to the Town 
Administrator on Wednesday when she meets with him. 
 
Council Member Arnett said he and former Council Member John Czarnecki gave a tour of City 
Hall to third graders from Parkview School on April 25.  The tour included the infamous attic of 
City Hall. 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor O’Keefe issued a proclamation for Municipal Clerk’s Week, May 6-12 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
       
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to adjourn the 
meeting at 7:50 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
       Constance K. McHugh, MMC/WCPC 
       City Clerk 
 
 

14 of 320



DRAFT 15 of 320



DRAFT 16 of 320



DRAFT 17 of 320



DRAFT 18 of 320



DRAFT 19 of 320



DRAFT 20 of 320



DRAFT 21 of 320



DRAFT 22 of 320



DRAFT 23 of 320



DRAFT 24 of 320



DRAFT 25 of 320



DRAFT 26 of 320



DRAFT 27 of 320



DRAFT 28 of 320



DRAFT 29 of 320



DRAFT 30 of 320



DRAFT 31 of 320



DRAFT 32 of 320



DRAFT 33 of 320



DRAFT 34 of 320



DRAFT 35 of 320



DRAFT 36 of 320



DRAFT 37 of 320



DRAFT 38 of 320



DRAFT 39 of 320



DRAFT 40 of 320



DRAFT 41 of 320



DRAFT 42 of 320



DRAFT 43 of 320



DRAFT 44 of 320



DRAFT 45 of 320



DRAFT 46 of 320



DRAFT 47 of 320



DRAFT 48 of 320



DRAFT 49 of 320



DRAFT 50 of 320



DRAFT 51 of 320



DRAFT 52 of 320



DRAFT 53 of 320



DRAFT 54 of 320



DRAFT 55 of 320



DRAFT 56 of 320



DRAFT 57 of 320



DRAFT 58 of 320



DRAFT 59 of 320



DRAFT 60 of 320



DRAFT 61 of 320



DRAFT 62 of 320



DRAFT 63 of 320



DRAFT 64 of 320



DRAFT 65 of 320



DRAFT 66 of 320



DRAFT 67 of 320



DRAFT 68 of 320



DRAFT 69 of 320



DRAFT 70 of 320



DRAFT 71 of 320



DRAFT 72 of 320



DRAFT 73 of 320



DRAFT 74 of 320



DRAFT 75 of 320



DRAFT 76 of 320



DRAFT 77 of 320



DRAFT 78 of 320



DRAFT 79 of 320



DRAFT 80 of 320



DRAFT 81 of 320



DRAFT 82 of 320



DRAFT 83 of 320



DRAFT 84 of 320



DRAFT 85 of 320



DRAFT 86 of 320



DRAFT 87 of 320



DRAFT 88 of 320



DRAFT 89 of 320



DRAFT 90 of 320



DRAFT 91 of 320



DRAFT 92 of 320



DRAFT 93 of 320



DRAFT 94 of 320



DRAFT 95 of 320



DRAFT 96 of 320



DRAFT 97 of 320



DRAFT 98 of 320



DRAFT 99 of 320



DRAFT 100 of 320



DRAFT 101 of 320



DRAFT 102 of 320



DRAFT 103 of 320



DRAFT 104 of 320



DRAFT 105 of 320



DRAFT 106 of 320



DRAFT 107 of 320



DRAFT 108 of 320



DRAFT 109 of 320



DRAFT 110 of 320



DRAFT 111 of 320



DRAFT 112 of 320



DRAFT 113 of 320



DRAFT 114 of 320



DRAFT 115 of 320



DRAFT 116 of 320



DRAFT 117 of 320



DRAFT 118 of 320



DRAFT 119 of 320



DRAFT 120 of 320



DRAFT 121 of 320



DRAFT 122 of 320



DRAFT 123 of 320



DRAFT 124 of 320



DRAFT 125 of 320



DRAFT 126 of 320



DRAFT 127 of 320



DRAFT 128 of 320



DRAFT 129 of 320



DRAFT 130 of 320



DRAFT 131 of 320



DRAFT 132 of 320



DRAFT 133 of 320



DRAFT 134 of 320



DRAFT 135 of 320



DRAFT 136 of 320



DRAFT 137 of 320



DRAFT 138 of 320



DRAFT 139 of 320



DRAFT 140 of 320



DRAFT 141 of 320



DRAFT 142 of 320



DRAFT 143 of 320



 

 
 

 
May 14, 2018 

 
Pre-Sale Report for 
 
City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin 
 
$1,245,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 
2018A 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Prepared by: 

 
Todd Taves, CIPMA 
Senior Municipal Advisor/ 
Principal 
 
And 
 
Maureen Holsen, CIPMA 
Municipal Advisor 

144 of 320



 

 
  

Presale Report  
City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin 

May 14, 2018
Page 1

 

Executive Summary of Proposed Debt 
 

Proposed Issue: $1,245,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2018A 

Purposes: The proposed issue includes financing for street and dam improvements included in the 
City’s 2018 Capital Improvements Budget. Debt service will be paid from ad valorem 
property taxes. 

Authority: The Notes are being issued pursuant to Wisconsin Statute 67.12(12) and will be general 
obligations of the City for which its full faith, credit and taxing powers are pledged. The 
Notes count against the City’s General Obligation Debt Capacity Limit of 5% of total 
City Equalized Valuation. Following issuance of the Notes, the City’s total General 
Obligation debt principal outstanding will be approximately $16.8 million, which is 
25.69% of its limit. Remaining General Obligation Borrowing Capacity will be 
approximately $48.6 million. Following issuance of the Notes, the City expects to issue 
an additional $4,3425,000 in Taxable General Obligation Community Development 
Bonds which will increase debt limit utilization to 30.9% of the limit, and will leave 
approximately $45 million in unused capacity.

Term/Call Feature: The Notes are being issued for a 10-year term.  Principal on the Notes will be due on 
March 1 in the years 2019 through 2028. Interest is payable every six months beginning 
March 1, 2019. The Notes maturing on and after March 1, 2026 will be subject to 
prepayment at the discretion of the City on March 1, 2025 or any date thereafter.

Bank Qualification: Because the City is expecting to issue no more than $10,000,000 in tax exempt debt 
during the calendar year, the City will be able to designate the Notes as “bank qualified” 
obligations.  Bank qualified status broadens the market for the Notes, which can result 
in lower interest rates.

Rating: The City’s most recent bond issues were rated “Aa2” by Moody’s Investors Service.  
The City will request a new rating for the Notes. If the winning bidder on the Notes elects 
to purchase bond insurance, the rating for the issue may be higher than the City's bond 
rating if the bond rating of the insurer is higher than that of the City. 

Basis for 
Recommendation: 

Based on our knowledge of your situation, your objectives communicated to us, our 
advisory relationship as well as characteristics of various municipal financing options, 
we are recommending the issuance of Notes as a suitable option based on: 

 The expectation this form of financing will provide the overall lowest cost of 
funds while also meeting the City’s objectives for term, structure and optional 
redemption. 

 The City having adequate General Obligation debt capacity to undertake this 
financing. 

 The nature of the projects being financed, which will not generate user or other 
fees that could be pledged to secure a revenue obligation. 

145 of 320



Presale Report  
City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin 

May 14, 2018
Page 2

Method of 
Sale/Placement: 

To obtain the lowest interest cost to the City, we will competitively bid the purchase of 
the Notes from local and national underwriters/banks. We have included an allowance 
for discount bidding equal to 1.00% of the principal amount of the issue. The discount 
is treated as an interest item and provides the underwriter with all or a portion of their 
compensation in the transaction. If the Notes are purchased at a price greater than the 
minimum bid amount (maximum discount), the unused allowance may be used to lower 
your borrowing amount. 

Premium Bids:  Under current market conditions, most investors in municipal bonds 
prefer “premium” pricing structures. A premium is achieved when the coupon for any 
maturity (the interest rate paid by the issuer) exceeds the yield to the investor, resulting 
in a price paid that is greater than the face value of the bonds.  The sum of the amounts 
paid in excess of face value is considered “reoffering premium.”  

For this issue of Notes, any premium amount received that is more than the underwriting 
discount and any capitalized interest amounts must be placed in the debt service fund 
and used to pay a portion of the interest payments due on the Notes. 

The amount of premium allowed can be restricted in the bid specifications.  Restrictions 
on premium may result in fewer bids, but may also eliminate large adjustments on the 
day of sale and unintended results with respect to debt service payment impacts.  Ehlers 
will identify appropriate premium restrictions for the Notes intended to achieve the 
City’s objectives for this financing.

Other 
Considerations: 

The Notes will be offered with the option of the successful bidder utilizing a term bond 
structure.  By offering underwriters the option to “term up” some of the maturities at the 
time of the sale, it gives them more flexibility in finding a market for your Notes.   This 
makes your issue more marketable, which can result in lower borrowing costs.  If the 
successful bidder utilizes a term bond structure, we recommend the City retain a paying 
agent to handle responsibility for processing mandatory redemption/call notices 
associated with term bonds.

Review of Existing 
Debt: 

We have reviewed all outstanding indebtedness for the City and find that there are no 
refunding opportunities at this time. We will continue to monitor the market and the call 
dates for the City’s outstanding debt and will alert you to any future refunding 
opportunities. 

Continuing 
Disclosure: 

Because the City has more than $10,000,000 in outstanding debt (including this issue) 
and this issue is over $1,000,000, the City will be agreeing to provide certain updated 
Annual Financial Information and its Audited Financial Statement annually as well as 
providing notices of the occurrence of certain reportable events to the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”), as required by rules of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC). The City is already obligated to provide such reports for 
its existing bonds, and has contracted with Ehlers to prepare and file the reports.

Arbitrage 
Monitoring: 

Because the Notes are tax-exempt obligations, the City must ensure compliance with 
certain Internal Revenue Service (IRS) rules throughout the life of the issue.  These rules 
apply to all gross proceeds of the issue, including initial bond proceeds and investment 
earnings in construction, escrow, debt service, and any reserve funds.  How issuers spend 
bond proceeds and how they track interest earnings on funds (arbitrage/yield restriction 

146 of 320



Presale Report  
City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin 

May 14, 2018
Page 3

compliance) are common subjects of IRS inquiries. Your specific responsibilities will 
be detailed in the Tax Exemption Certificate prepared by your Bond Attorney and 
provided at closing. We recommend that you regularly monitor compliance with these 
rules and/or retain the services of a qualified firm to assist you.  

Other Service 
Providers: 

This debt issuance will require the engagement of other public finance service 
providers.  This section identifies those other service providers, so Ehlers can coordinate 
their engagement on your behalf.  Where you have previously used a particular firm to 
provide a service, we have assumed that you will continue that relationship.  For services 
you have not previously required, we have identified a service provider.  Fees charged 
by these service providers will be paid from proceeds of the obligation, unless you notify 
us that you wish to pay them from other sources.  Our pre-sale bond sizing includes a 
good faith estimate of these fees, so their final fees may vary.  If you have any questions 
pertaining to the identified service providers or their role, or if you would like to use a 
different service provider for any of the listed services please contact us. 

Bond Attorney: Quarles & Brady LLP 

Disclosure Counsel: Quarles & Brady LLP 

Paying Agent: Bond Trust Services (if term bond bid) 

Rating Agency: Moody's Investors Service

This presale report summarizes our understanding of the City’s objectives for the structure and terms of this 
financing as of this date.  As additional facts become known or capital markets conditions change, we may need to 
modify the structure and/or terms of this financing to achieve results consistent with the City’s objectives. 

147 of 320



Presale Report  
City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin 

May 14, 2018
Page 4

Proposed Debt Issuance Schedule 

Pre-Sale Review by Common Council: May 14, 2018 

Distribute Official Statement: June 1, 2018 

Conference with Rating Agency: Week of May 28, 2018 

Common Council Meeting to Award Sale of the Bonds: June 11, 2018 

Estimated Closing Date: June 28, 2018 

Attachments 
Sources and Uses of Funds 

Proposed Debt Service Schedule 

Bond Buyer Index 

Ehlers Contacts 
Municipal Advisors: Todd Taves (262) 796-6173

Maureen Holsen (262) 796-6170

Disclosure Coordinator: Sue Porter (262) 796-6167

Financial Analyst: Kathy Myers (262) 796-6177

The Official Statement for this financing will be mailed to the Common Council at their home address or e-mailed 
for review prior to the sale date. 

148 of 320



Tax‐Exempt Taxable

Sale 6‐11‐2018 TBD
Dated 6‐28‐2018 TBD

Projects Funded1

Street Improvements 1,337,502$         ‐$
Dam Improvements 287,500$             ‐$
Cash Applied (437,502)$           ‐$
TID No. 4 ‐ Developer Assistance ‐$ 275,000$            
TID No. 4 ‐ Project Gap Financing ‐$ 3,053,000$        

Subtotal Projects 1,187,500$         3,328,000$        

Estimated Costs of Issuance & Discount
Municipal Advisor (Ehlers) 15,800$               23,000$              
Bond Counsel (Quarles & Brady LLP) 8,500$ 12,000$              
Disclosure Counsel (Quarles & Brady LLP) 5,100$ 7,200$                
Rating (Moody's Investor's Service) 12,000$               12,000$              
Paying Agent (Bond Trust Services) 675$ 675$

Maximum Underwriter's Discount2 12,450$                42,813$              

Total To Be Financed 1,242,025$         3,425,688$        

Less Estimated Interest Earnings3 (990)$   (2,773)$               

Rounding 3,965$ 2,086$                

NET ISSUE SIZE 1,245,000$         3,425,000$        

NOTES:
1Street and dam improvements per C. Mertes e‐mail dated 3‐22‐2018. TID No. 4 costs per Project Plan.
2Discount is 1.0% of 2018A Notes and 1.25% of 2018B Bonds.
3Assumes temporary investment of proceeds for one month at 1.0%.

G.O. Bonds 

Series 2018B

G.O. Notes 

Series 2018A

2018 Financing Plan

Sizing Worksheet

Presale Estimates

Prepared by Ehlers

Leaders in Public Finance

4/4/2018

File: Cedarburg Base Case_2017‐3‐22/Sizing Alt 1
149 of 320



Year Prin (3/1) Est. Rate5 Interest Total Prin (3/1) Est. Rate6 Interest Total YEAR

2018 1,309,132,400 1,656,474 (3,787) (60,550) 1,592,137 1.22 1,592,137 1.22 259,000$      314.99$         314.99$       2018

2019 1,341,361,381 1,752,610 (2,577) (64,813) 1,685,221 1.26 110,000 1.750% 34,020 144,020 125,000 2.350% 113,430 238,430 2,067,671 1.54 261,770$      328.88$         74.64$          403.51$       88.52$          2019

2020 1,374,383,794 1,742,073 (1,319) (64,138) 1,676,616 1.22 115,000 1.900% 26,755 141,755 130,000 2.580% 110,285 240,285 2,058,656 1.50 264,570$      322.75$         73.54$          396.29$       (7.22)$          2020

2021 1,408,219,171 1,726,099 (63,463) 1,662,636 1.18 115,000 2.050% 24,484 139,484 130,000 2.700% 106,853 236,853 (5,461) 2,033,511 1.44 267,399$      315.71$         70.42$          386.13$       (10.16)$        2021

2022 1,442,887,528 1,715,861 (62,675) 1,653,186 1.15 120,000 2.200% 21,985 141,985 135,000 2.830% 103,187 238,187 (5,516) 2,027,843 1.41 270,259$      309.65$         70.17$          379.82$       (6.31)$          2022

2023 1,478,409,370 1,321,911 (61,775) 1,260,136 0.85 125,000 2.350% 19,196 144,196 140,000 2.960% 99,205 239,205 (5,571) 1,637,967 1.11 273,149$      232.82$         69.81$          302.63$       (77.19)$        2023

2024 1,514,805,710 1,315,536 (60,875) 1,254,661 0.83 125,000 2.450% 16,196 141,196 145,000 3.080% 94,900 239,900 (5,627) 1,630,131 1.08 276,071$      228.66$         68.43$          297.09$       (5.54)$          2024
2025 1,552,098,076 1,283,811 (59,975) 1,223,836 0.79 130,000 2.550% 13,008 143,008 150,000 3.180% 90,282 240,282 (55,330) 1,551,796 1.00 279,023$      220.01$         58.96$          278.97$       (18.12)$        2025

2026 1,590,308,527 925,374 (64,025) 861,349 0.54 130,000 2.700% 9,595 139,595 155,000 3.250% 85,378 240,378 (95,601) 1,145,721 0.72 282,007$      152.74$         50.43$          203.17$       (75.80)$        2026

2027 1,629,459,665 915,011 (63,025) 851,986 0.52 135,000 2.800% 5,950 140,950 160,000 3.310% 80,212 240,212 (146,204) 1,086,944 0.67 285,023$      149.03$         41.10$          190.13$       (13.04)$        2027
2028 1,669,574,648 637,386 (62,025) 575,361 0.34 140,000 2.900% 2,030 142,030 165,000 3.350% 74,800 239,800 (202,278) 754,913 0.45 288,072$      99.27$           30.98$          130.25$       (59.87)$        2028

2029 1,710,677,205 601,513 (61,025) 540,488 0.32 170,000 3.400% 69,146 239,146 (204,301) 575,333 0.34 291,153$      91.99$           5.93$            97.92$          (32.33)$        2029

2030 1,752,791,649 601,513 (60,025) 541,488 0.31 175,000 3.430% 63,255 238,255 (206,344) 573,399 0.33 294,266$      90.91$           5.36$            96.26$          (1.66)$          2030

2031 1,795,942,891 600,669 (63,906) 536,763 0.30 180,000 3.470% 57,131 237,131 (208,407) 565,486 0.31 297,414$      88.89$           4.76$            93.65$          (2.62)$          2031

2032 1,840,156,455 598,313 (62,600) 535,713 0.29 185,000 3.510% 50,761 235,761 (210,491) 560,982 0.30 300,594$      87.51$           4.13$            91.64$          (2.01)$          2032

2033 1,885,458,494 599,325 (61,156) 538,169 0.29 195,000 3.560% 44,043 239,043 (212,596) 564,616 0.30 303,809$      86.72$           4.26$            90.98$          (0.66)$          2033

2034 1,931,875,805 603,500 (64,500) 539,000 0.28 200,000 3.610% 36,962 236,962 (214,722) 561,240 0.29 307,058$      85.67$           3.53$            89.21$          (1.77)$          2034

2035 1,979,435,845 601,475 (62,700) 538,775 0.27 210,000 3.660% 29,509 239,509 (216,869) 561,415 0.28 310,342$      84.47$           3.55$            88.02$          (1.18)$          2035

2036 2,028,166,745 603,925 (60,900) 543,025 0.27 215,000 3.720% 21,667 236,667 (219,038) 560,654 0.28 313,661$      83.98$           2.73$            86.71$          (1.31)$          2036

2037 2,078,097,330 0.00 225,000 3.800% 13,393 238,393 (221,228) 17,165 0.01 317,016$      ‐$               2.62$            2.62$            (84.09)$        2037
2038 2,129,257,136 0.00 235,000 3.880% 4,559 239,559 (223,441) 16,118 0.01 320,406$      ‐$               2.43$            2.43$            (0.19)$          2038

2039 2,181,676,424 2039

TOTALS 19,802,378 (7,682) (1,184,150) 18,610,546 1,245,000 173,219 1,418,219 3,425,000 1,348,956 4,773,956 (2,659,023) 22,143,698 TOTALS

NOTES
1
Valuation shown for 2018 is actual (1‐1‐2017 TID OUT EV). Thereafter, assumes a 2.46% annual increase (five‐year historical average).

2
Total principal and interest due on outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Notes and State Trust Fund Loans issued by the City through May 1, 2018.

3Credit received equal to 35% of the interest payment due on the City's 2010 State Trust Fund Loan (Build Amercia Bond ‐ Direct Payment). Assumes a 6.6% reduction in the credit amount (FY18 amount) due to federal sequestration.
4Sanitary sewer allocated portion of the Series 2016A Bonds.
5
Estimated rates are Village of Germantown (Aa2) 3‐22‐2018 reoffering yields plus 0.25%.

6
Estimated rates are Taxable BVAL AA yield curve from 1‐3‐2018 plus 0.35%.

7
Reflects TID No. 4 tax increment collections available to offset a portion of the Series 2018A G.O. Bond debt service as projected in the TID No. 4 Project Plan.

Abatement Sources

Presale Estimate

Projected Debt Service Impact of Proposed 2018 Debt Issues

Plus Estimated New Debt Service
Taxes For 

Existing City 

Debt

Total Taxes 

For Debt

Change vs. 

Prior Year

Existing Debt Only

Equalized Value 

Projection1
Annual P&I 

Payment2

Projected 

Tax Rate for 

Debt Service

Projected 

Debt Service 

Levy

Projected 

Tax Rate for 

Debt Service

Series 2018B Txbl G.O. Community Dev. Bonds

BAB Credit3 Sewer Fund4
Net Debt 

Service
$3,425,000

Dated 9‐1‐2018

Series 2018A G.O. Promissory Notes
Taxes For 

New Debt
Home Value

Less TID No. 

4 Portion7
$1,245,000

Dated 6‐28‐2018

Prepared by Ehlers

Leaders in Public Finance

4/4/2018

File: Cedarburg Base Case_2017‐3‐22/Structure Alt 1
150 of 320



5 YEAR TREND IN MUNICIPAL BOND INDICES

Source: The Bond Buyer

The Bond Buyer “20 Bond Index” (BBI) shows average yields on a group of municipal bonds that 
mature in 20 years and have an average rating equivalent to Moody’s Aa2 and S&P’s AA. 

151 of 320



 

 
 

 
May 14, 2018 

 
Pre-Sale Report for 
 
City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin 
 
$3,425,000 Taxable General Obligation Community 
Development Bonds, Series 2018B 

 
 
 

 
 

Prepared by: 

 
Todd Taves, CIPMA 
Senior Municipal Advisor/ 
Principal 
 
And 
 
Maureen Holsen, CIPMA 
Municipal Advisor 

152 of 320



 

 
  

Presale Report  
City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin 

May 14, 2018
Page 1

 

Executive Summary of Proposed Debt 
 

Proposed Issue: $3,425,000 Taxable General Obligation Community Development Bonds, Series 2018B

Purposes: The proposed issue includes financing to pay the costs of developer assistance and 
project gap financing as identified in the development agreement for the Amcast 
redevelopment site (Tax Increment District No. 4). Debt service will be paid from ad 
valorem property taxes, with annual debt service payments to be abated in part or in full 
by tax increment revenues to the extent available.

Authority: The Bonds are being issued pursuant to Wisconsin Statute 67.04 and will be general 
obligations of the City for which its full faith, credit and taxing powers are pledged. The 
Bonds count against the City’s General Obligation Debt Capacity Limit of 5% of total 
City Equalized Valuation. Following issuance of the Bonds, and including the 
$1,245,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2018A the City expects to issue 
in advance of the Bonds, the City’s total General Obligation debt principal outstanding 
will be approximately $20 million, which is 30.9% of its limit. Remaining General 
Obligation Borrowing Capacity will be approximately $45 million. 

Term/Call Feature: The Bonds are being issued for a 20-year term.  Principal on the Bonds will be due on 
March 1 in the years 2019 through 2038. Interest is payable every six months beginning 
March 1, 2019. The Bonds maturing on and after March 1, 2026 will be subject to 
prepayment at the discretion of the City on March 1, 2025 or any date thereafter.

Bank Qualification: Because the Bonds are taxable obligations they will not be designated as “bank 
qualified” obligations.

Rating: The City’s most recent bond issues were rated “Aa2” by Moody’s Investors Service.  
The City will request a new rating for the Bonds. If the winning bidder on the Bonds 
elects to purchase bond insurance, the rating for the issue may be higher than the City's 
bond rating if the bond rating of the insurer is higher than that of the City.

Basis for 
Recommendation: 

Based on our knowledge of your situation, your objectives communicated to us, our 
advisory relationship as well as characteristics of various municipal financing options, 
we are recommending the issuance of Bonds as a suitable option based on: 

 The expectation this form of financing will provide the overall lowest cost of 
funds while also meeting the City’s objectives for term, structure and optional 
redemption. 

 The City having adequate General Obligation debt capacity to undertake this 
financing. 

 The nature of the project being financed, which is not expected to generate tax 
increments in amounts sufficient to be pledged to secure a revenue obligation. 

 The Project Plan for Tax Incremental District No. 4 which identified issuance of 
General Obligation Bonds to finance these costs.

153 of 320



 

 
  

Presale Report  
City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin 

May 14, 2018
Page 2

 

Method of 
Sale/Placement: 

To obtain the lowest interest cost to the City, we will competitively bid the purchase of 
the Bonds from local and national underwriters/banks. We have included an allowance 
for discount bidding equal to 1.25% of the principal amount of the issue. The discount 
is treated as an interest item and provides the underwriter with all or a portion of their 
compensation in the transaction. If the Bonds are purchased at a price greater than the 
minimum bid amount (maximum discount), the unused allowance may be used to lower 
your borrowing amount. 

Premium Bids:  Under current market conditions, most investors in municipal bonds 
prefer “premium” pricing structures. A premium is achieved when the coupon for any 
maturity (the interest rate paid by the issuer) exceeds the yield to the investor, resulting 
in a price paid that is greater than the face value of the bonds.  The sum of the amounts 
paid in excess of face value is considered “reoffering premium.”  

For this issue of Bonds, any premium amount received that is more than the underwriting 
discount and any capitalized interest amounts must be placed in the debt service fund 
and used to pay a portion of the interest payments due on the Bonds. 

The amount of premium allowed can be restricted in the bid specifications.  Restrictions 
on premium may result in fewer bids, but may also eliminate large adjustments on the 
day of sale and unintended results with respect to debt service payment impacts.  Ehlers 
will identify appropriate premium restrictions for the Bonds intended to achieve the 
City’s objectives for this financing.

Other 
Considerations: 

The Bonds will be offered with the option of the successful bidder utilizing a term bond 
structure.  By offering underwriters the option to “term up” some of the maturities at the 
time of the sale, it gives them more flexibility in finding a market for your Bonds.   This 
makes your issue more marketable, which can result in lower borrowing costs.  If the 
successful bidder utilizes a term bond structure, we recommend the City retain a paying 
agent to handle responsibility for processing mandatory redemption/call notices 
associated with term bonds.

Review of Existing 
Debt: 

We have reviewed all outstanding indebtedness for the City and find that there are no 
refunding opportunities at this time. We will continue to monitor the market and the call 
dates for the City’s outstanding debt and will alert you to any future refunding 
opportunities. 

Continuing 
Disclosure: 

Because the City has more than $10,000,000 in outstanding debt (including this issue) 
and this issue is over $1,000,000, the City will be agreeing to provide certain updated 
Annual Financial Information and its Audited Financial Statement annually as well as 
providing notices of the occurrence of certain reportable events to the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”), as required by rules of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC). The City is already obligated to provide such reports for 
its existing bonds, and has contracted with Ehlers to prepare and file the reports.

Arbitrage 
Monitoring: 

The Bonds are taxable obligations and are therefore not subject to IRS arbitrage and 
yield restriction requirements.

   

154 of 320



 

 
  

Presale Report  
City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin 

May 14, 2018
Page 3

 

Risk Factors: The City expects to abate a portion of the City debt service with tax incremental 
revenues. In the event these revenues are not available, the City is obligated to levy 
property taxes in an amount sufficient to make all debt payments. 

Other Service 
Providers: 

This debt issuance will require the engagement of other public finance service 
providers.  This section identifies those other service providers, so Ehlers can coordinate 
their engagement on your behalf.  Where you have previously used a particular firm to 
provide a service, we have assumed that you will continue that relationship.  For services 
you have not previously required, we have identified a service provider.  Fees charged 
by these service providers will be paid from proceeds of the obligation, unless you notify 
us that you wish to pay them from other sources.  Our pre-sale bond sizing includes a 
good faith estimate of these fees, so their final fees may vary.  If you have any questions 
pertaining to the identified service providers or their role, or if you would like to use a 
different service provider for any of the listed services please contact us. 

Bond Attorney: Quarles & Brady LLP 

Disclosure Counsel: Quarles & Brady LLP 

Paying Agent: Bond Trust Services (if term bond bid) 

Rating Agency: Moody's Investors Service

 
This presale report summarizes our understanding of the City’s objectives for the structure and terms of this 
financing as of this date.  As additional facts become known or capital markets conditions change, we may need to 
modify the structure and/or terms of this financing to achieve results consistent with the City’s objectives. 
  

155 of 320



 

 
  

Presale Report  
City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin 

May 14, 2018
Page 4

 

Proposed Debt Issuance Schedule 
 

Pre-Sale Review by Common Council: May 14, 2018 

Distribute Official Statement: To Be Determined. 

Conference with Rating Agency: To Be Determined. 

Common Council Meeting to Award Sale of the Bonds: To Be Determined. 

Estimated Closing Date: To Be Determined. 

 

 
Attachments 

Sources and Uses of Funds 

Proposed Debt Service Schedule 

TID No. 4 Cash Flow Projection 

Bond Buyer Index 
 
 

Ehlers Contacts 
Municipal Advisors: Todd Taves (262) 796-6173 

 Maureen Holsen (262) 796-6170 

Disclosure Coordinator: Sue Porter (262) 796-6167 

Financial Analyst: Kathy Myers (262) 796-6177 
 
 
The Official Statement for this financing will be mailed to the Common Council at their home address or e-mailed 
for review prior to the sale date. 

156 of 320



Tax‐Exempt Taxable

Sale 6‐11‐2018 TBD
Dated 6‐28‐2018 TBD

Projects Funded1

Street Improvements 1,337,502$         ‐$                    
Dam Improvements 287,500$             ‐$                    
Cash Applied (437,502)$           ‐$                    
TID No. 4 ‐ Developer Assistance ‐$                     275,000$            
TID No. 4 ‐ Project Gap Financing ‐$                     3,053,000$        

Subtotal Projects 1,187,500$         3,328,000$        

Estimated Costs of Issuance & Discount
Municipal Advisor (Ehlers) 15,800$               23,000$              
Bond Counsel (Quarles & Brady LLP) 8,500$                 12,000$              
Disclosure Counsel (Quarles & Brady LLP) 5,100$                 7,200$                
Rating (Moody's Investor's Service) 12,000$               12,000$              
Paying Agent (Bond Trust Services) 675$                    675$                   

Maximum Underwriter's Discount2 12,450$                42,813$              

Total To Be Financed 1,242,025$         3,425,688$        

Less Estimated Interest Earnings3 (990)$                    (2,773)$               

Rounding 3,965$                 2,086$                

NET ISSUE SIZE 1,245,000$         3,425,000$        

NOTES:
1Street and dam improvements per C. Mertes e‐mail dated 3‐22‐2018. TID No. 4 costs per Project Plan.
2Discount is 1.0% of 2018A Notes and 1.25% of 2018B Bonds.
3Assumes temporary investment of proceeds for one month at 1.0%.

G.O. Bonds 

Series 2018B

G.O. Notes 

Series 2018A

2018 Financing Plan

Sizing Worksheet

Presale Estimates

Prepared by Ehlers

Leaders in Public Finance

4/4/2018

File: Cedarburg Base Case_2017‐3‐22/Sizing Alt 1
157 of 320



Year Prin (3/1) Est. Rate5 Interest Total Prin (3/1) Est. Rate6 Interest Total YEAR

2018 1,309,132,400 1,656,474 (3,787) (60,550) 1,592,137 1.22 1,592,137 1.22 259,000$      314.99$         314.99$       2018

2019 1,341,361,381 1,752,610 (2,577) (64,813) 1,685,221 1.26 110,000 1.750% 34,020 144,020 125,000 2.350% 113,430 238,430 2,067,671 1.54 261,770$      328.88$         74.64$          403.51$       88.52$          2019

2020 1,374,383,794 1,742,073 (1,319) (64,138) 1,676,616 1.22 115,000 1.900% 26,755 141,755 130,000 2.580% 110,285 240,285 2,058,656 1.50 264,570$      322.75$         73.54$          396.29$       (7.22)$          2020

2021 1,408,219,171 1,726,099 (63,463) 1,662,636 1.18 115,000 2.050% 24,484 139,484 130,000 2.700% 106,853 236,853 (5,461) 2,033,511 1.44 267,399$      315.71$         70.42$          386.13$       (10.16)$        2021

2022 1,442,887,528 1,715,861 (62,675) 1,653,186 1.15 120,000 2.200% 21,985 141,985 135,000 2.830% 103,187 238,187 (5,516) 2,027,843 1.41 270,259$      309.65$         70.17$          379.82$       (6.31)$          2022

2023 1,478,409,370 1,321,911 (61,775) 1,260,136 0.85 125,000 2.350% 19,196 144,196 140,000 2.960% 99,205 239,205 (5,571) 1,637,967 1.11 273,149$      232.82$         69.81$          302.63$       (77.19)$        2023

2024 1,514,805,710 1,315,536 (60,875) 1,254,661 0.83 125,000 2.450% 16,196 141,196 145,000 3.080% 94,900 239,900 (5,627) 1,630,131 1.08 276,071$      228.66$         68.43$          297.09$       (5.54)$          2024
2025 1,552,098,076 1,283,811 (59,975) 1,223,836 0.79 130,000 2.550% 13,008 143,008 150,000 3.180% 90,282 240,282 (55,330) 1,551,796 1.00 279,023$      220.01$         58.96$          278.97$       (18.12)$        2025

2026 1,590,308,527 925,374 (64,025) 861,349 0.54 130,000 2.700% 9,595 139,595 155,000 3.250% 85,378 240,378 (95,601) 1,145,721 0.72 282,007$      152.74$         50.43$          203.17$       (75.80)$        2026

2027 1,629,459,665 915,011 (63,025) 851,986 0.52 135,000 2.800% 5,950 140,950 160,000 3.310% 80,212 240,212 (146,204) 1,086,944 0.67 285,023$      149.03$         41.10$          190.13$       (13.04)$        2027
2028 1,669,574,648 637,386 (62,025) 575,361 0.34 140,000 2.900% 2,030 142,030 165,000 3.350% 74,800 239,800 (202,278) 754,913 0.45 288,072$      99.27$           30.98$          130.25$       (59.87)$        2028

2029 1,710,677,205 601,513 (61,025) 540,488 0.32 170,000 3.400% 69,146 239,146 (204,301) 575,333 0.34 291,153$      91.99$           5.93$            97.92$          (32.33)$        2029

2030 1,752,791,649 601,513 (60,025) 541,488 0.31 175,000 3.430% 63,255 238,255 (206,344) 573,399 0.33 294,266$      90.91$           5.36$            96.26$          (1.66)$          2030

2031 1,795,942,891 600,669 (63,906) 536,763 0.30 180,000 3.470% 57,131 237,131 (208,407) 565,486 0.31 297,414$      88.89$           4.76$            93.65$          (2.62)$          2031

2032 1,840,156,455 598,313 (62,600) 535,713 0.29 185,000 3.510% 50,761 235,761 (210,491) 560,982 0.30 300,594$      87.51$           4.13$            91.64$          (2.01)$          2032

2033 1,885,458,494 599,325 (61,156) 538,169 0.29 195,000 3.560% 44,043 239,043 (212,596) 564,616 0.30 303,809$      86.72$           4.26$            90.98$          (0.66)$          2033

2034 1,931,875,805 603,500 (64,500) 539,000 0.28 200,000 3.610% 36,962 236,962 (214,722) 561,240 0.29 307,058$      85.67$           3.53$            89.21$          (1.77)$          2034

2035 1,979,435,845 601,475 (62,700) 538,775 0.27 210,000 3.660% 29,509 239,509 (216,869) 561,415 0.28 310,342$      84.47$           3.55$            88.02$          (1.18)$          2035

2036 2,028,166,745 603,925 (60,900) 543,025 0.27 215,000 3.720% 21,667 236,667 (219,038) 560,654 0.28 313,661$      83.98$           2.73$            86.71$          (1.31)$          2036

2037 2,078,097,330 0.00 225,000 3.800% 13,393 238,393 (221,228) 17,165 0.01 317,016$      ‐$               2.62$            2.62$            (84.09)$        2037
2038 2,129,257,136 0.00 235,000 3.880% 4,559 239,559 (223,441) 16,118 0.01 320,406$      ‐$               2.43$            2.43$            (0.19)$          2038

2039 2,181,676,424 2039

TOTALS 19,802,378 (7,682) (1,184,150) 18,610,546 1,245,000 173,219 1,418,219 3,425,000 1,348,956 4,773,956 (2,659,023) 22,143,698 TOTALS

NOTES
1
Valuation shown for 2018 is actual (1‐1‐2017 TID OUT EV). Thereafter, assumes a 2.46% annual increase (five‐year historical average).

2
Total principal and interest due on outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Notes and State Trust Fund Loans issued by the City through May 1, 2018.

3Credit received equal to 35% of the interest payment due on the City's 2010 State Trust Fund Loan (Build Amercia Bond ‐ Direct Payment). Assumes a 6.6% reduction in the credit amount (FY18 amount) due to federal sequestration.
4Sanitary sewer allocated portion of the Series 2016A Bonds.
5
Estimated rates are Village of Germantown (Aa2) 3‐22‐2018 reoffering yields plus 0.25%.

6
Estimated rates are Taxable BVAL AA yield curve from 1‐3‐2018 plus 0.35%.

7
Reflects TID No. 4 tax increment collections available to offset a portion of the Series 2018A G.O. Bond debt service as projected in the TID No. 4 Project Plan.

Abatement Sources

Presale Estimate

Projected Debt Service Impact of Proposed 2018 Debt Issues

Plus Estimated New Debt Service
Taxes For 

Existing City 

Debt

Total Taxes 

For Debt

Change vs. 

Prior Year

Existing Debt Only

Equalized Value 

Projection1
Annual P&I 

Payment2

Projected 

Tax Rate for 

Debt Service

Projected 

Debt Service 

Levy

Projected 

Tax Rate for 

Debt Service

Series 2018B Txbl G.O. Community Dev. Bonds

BAB Credit3 Sewer Fund4
Net Debt 

Service
$3,425,000

Dated 9‐1‐2018

Series 2018A G.O. Promissory Notes
Taxes For 

New Debt
Home Value

Less TID No. 

4 Portion7
$1,245,000

Dated 6‐28‐2018

Prepared by Ehlers

Leaders in Public Finance

4/4/2018

File: Cedarburg Base Case_2017‐3‐22/Structure Alt 1
158 of 320



City of Cedarburg
Tax Increment District #4

Cash Flow Projection

Year

Dated Date:  

Prin (4/1) Est. Rate3 Interest Total Year

2018 2,773 3,425,000 17,895 3,445,668 3,233,000 97,668 20,000 3,350,668 95,000 95,000 3,425,000 2018

2019 240,430 240,430 125,000 2.350% 113,430 238,430 64,500 2,000 304,930 (64,500) 30,500 3,300,000 2019

2020 0 242,285 242,285 130,000 2.580% 110,285 240,285 30,500 2,000 272,785 (30,500) 0 3,170,000 2020

2021 5,461 233,391 238,853 130,000 2.700% 106,853 236,853 2,000 238,853 0 0 3,040,000 2021

2022 5,516 234,671 240,187 135,000 2.830% 103,187 238,187 2,000 240,187 0 0 2,905,000 2022

2023 5,571 235,634 241,205 140,000 2.960% 99,205 239,205 2,000 241,205 0 0 2,765,000 2023

2024 5,627 236,273 241,900 145,000 3.080% 94,900 239,900 2,000 241,900 0 0 2,620,000 2024

2025 55,330 186,952 242,282 150,000 3.180% 90,282 240,282 2,000 242,282 0 0 2,470,000 2025

2026 95,601 146,777 242,378 155,000 3.250% 85,378 240,378 2,000 242,378 0 0 2,315,000 2026

2027 146,204 96,008 242,212 160,000 3.310% 80,212 240,212 2,000 242,212 0 0 2,155,000 2027

2028 202,278 39,522 241,800 165,000 3.350% 74,800 239,800 2,000 241,800 0 0 1,990,000 2028

2029 204,301 36,845 241,146 170,000 3.400% 69,146 239,146 2,000 241,146 0 0 1,820,000 2029

2030 206,344 33,911 240,255 175,000 3.430% 63,255 238,255 2,000 240,255 0 0 1,645,000 2030

2031 208,407 30,723 239,131 180,000 3.470% 57,131 237,131 2,000 239,131 0 0 1,465,000 2031

2032 210,491 27,270 237,761 185,000 3.510% 50,761 235,761 2,000 237,761 0 0 1,280,000 2032

2033 212,596 28,447 241,043 195,000 3.560% 44,043 239,043 2,000 241,043 0 0 1,085,000 2033

2034 214,722 24,240 238,962 200,000 3.610% 36,962 236,962 2,000 238,962 0 0 885,000 2034

2035 216,869 24,640 241,509 210,000 3.660% 29,509 239,509 2,000 241,509 0 0 675,000 2035

2036 219,038 19,629 238,667 215,000 3.720% 21,667 236,667 2,000 238,667 0 0 460,000 2036

2037 221,228 19,165 240,393 225,000 3.800% 13,393 238,393 2,000 240,393 0 0 235,000 2037

2038 223,441 18,118 241,559 235,000 3.880% 4,559 239,559 2,000 241,559 0 0 0 2038

2039 225,675 225,675 223,675 2,000 225,675 0 0 0 2039

2040 227,932 227,932 225,932 2,000 227,932 0 0 0 2040

2041 230,211 230,211 228,211 2,000 230,211 0 0 0 2041

2042 232,513 232,513 230,513 2,000 232,513 0 0 0 2042

2043 234,838 234,838 232,838 2,000 234,838 0 0 0 2043

2044 237,187 237,187 235,187 2,000 237,187 0 0 0 2044

2045 239,558 239,558 237,558 2,000 239,558 0 0 0 2045

2046 241,954 241,954 231,954 10,000 241,954 0 0 0 2046

Total 4,528,892 2,773 3,425,000 2,172,828 10,129,492 3,425,000 1,348,956 4,773,956 3,328,000 97,668 1,845,868 84,000 10,129,492 Total

(1,845,868)     Repayment of City Advances

326,959         Unrecovered Portion

539,386         Plus 1% Interest Accrued on Advance Amounts 

866,345         Net Total City Contribution Maturities Subject to Optional Redemption (Callable)

Notes:
1Estimated interest earnings on temporary investment of bond proceeds.
2Estimated amount of City tax levy or other revenue needed to pay TID debt service and administrative costs. Negative figures shown for 2038 through 2045 reflect potential to recoup a portion of prior contributions to the TID after debt is retired.
3Estimated rates are Taxable BVAL AA yield curve from 1‐3‐2018 plus 0.35%.
4
Includes underwriting discount, bond counsel, disclosure counsel, rating fee, paying agent and municipal advisor.

Balances

Tax 

Increments

Interest 

Earnings1

Proceeds of 

Long Term 

Debt

City Levy & 

Advances for 

TID Debt & 

Projects
2

Taxable G.O. Development Bond Developer 

Assistance & 

Project Gap 

Financing

Finance 

Related 

Expense
4

Total 

Revenues

3,425,000

Admin.

Projected Revenues Expenditures

Annual Cumulative

Principal 

Outstanding

09/01/18

Projected TID Closure

Repayment of 

City Advances

Total 

Expenditures

4/4/2018159 of 320



5 YEAR TREND IN MUNICIPAL BOND INDICES

Source: The Bond Buyer

The Bond Buyer “20 Bond Index” (BBI) shows average yields on a group of municipal bonds that 
mature in 20 years and have an average rating equivalent to Moody’s Aa2 and S&P’s AA. 

160 of 320



CITY OF CEDARBURG 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-12 
 

RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE SALE OF APPROXIMATELY 

$1,245,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTES, SERIES 2018A 

WHEREAS the City of Cedarburg, Ozaukee County, Wisconsin (the "City") is presently in need of 

approximately $1,245,000 for public purposes, including financing street and dam improvements included 

in the City's 2018 Capital Improvements Budget; and 

 

WHEREAS it is desirable to borrow said funds through the issuance of general obligation 

promissory notes pursuant to Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin Statutes. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City that: 

 

Section 1.  The Notes.  The City shall issue its "General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 

2018A" in an approximate amount of $1,245,000 (the "Notes") for the purposes above specified. 

 

Section 2.  Sale of Notes.  The Common Council hereby authorizes and directs that the Notes be 

offered for public sale.  At a subsequent meeting, the Common Council shall consider such bids for the 

Notes as may have been received and take action thereon. 

 

Section 3.  Notice of Note Sale.  The City Clerk (in consultation with Ehlers & Associates, Inc. 

("Ehlers")) be and hereby is directed to cause notice of the sale of the Notes to be disseminated in such 

manner and at such times as the City Clerk may determine and to cause copies of a complete Notice of 

Sale and other pertinent data to be forwarded to interested bidders as the City Clerk may determine. 

 

Section 4.  Official Statement.  The City Clerk shall cause an Official Statement concerning this 

issue to be prepared by Ehlers.  The appropriate City officials shall determine when the Official Statement 

is final for purposes of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12 and shall certify said Official 

Statement, such certification to constitute full authorization of such Official Statement under this 

resolution. 

 

Adopted, approved and recorded May 14, 2018. 

 

_____________________________ 

Michael J. O'Keefe 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh 

City Clerk 

(SEAL) 

161 of 320



CITY OF CEDARBURG 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-13 

 

INITIAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING GENERAL 

OBLIGATION BONDS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 

$3,425,000 FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS 

IN TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 4 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Ozaukee County, 

Wisconsin, that there shall be issued, pursuant to Chapter 67, Wisconsin Statutes, general 

obligation bonds in an amount not to exceed $3,425,000 for the public purpose of providing 

financial assistance to community development projects under Section 66.1105, Wisconsin 

Statutes, by paying project costs included in the project plan for the City's Tax Incremental 

District No. 4. 

 

Adopted, approved and recorded May 14, 2018. 

 

 

 

_________________________ 

Michael J. O'Keefe 

Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh 

City Clerk 

 

(SEAL) 

 

162 of 320



CITY OF CEDARBURG 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-14 

 

 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF NOTICE TO ELECTORS 

RELATING TO BOND ISSUE 

 

WHEREAS, an initial resolution authorizing general obligation bonds has been adopted 

by the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Ozaukee County, Wisconsin (the "City") and 

it is now necessary that said initial resolution be published to afford notice to the residents of the 

City of its adoption; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Clerk shall, within 15 days, 

publish a notice to the electors in substantially the form attached hereto in the official City 

newspaper as a class 1 notice under ch. 985, Wis. Stats. 

 

Adopted, approved and recorded May 14, 2018. 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

Michael J. O'Keefe 

Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

Constance K. McHugh 

City Clerk 

 

 

(SEAL) 

 

163 of 320



CITY OF CEDARBURG 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-15 

 

RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE SALE OF NOT TO EXCEED 

$3,425,000 TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION COMMUNITY  

DEVELOPMENT BONDS, SERIES 2018B 

 WHEREAS, the City of Cedarburg, Ozaukee County, Wisconsin (the "City") has adopted an 

initial resolution (the "Initial Resolution") authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds for the 

following public purpose and in the following not to exceed amount: $3,425,000 for community 

development projects in the City's Tax Incremental District No. 4; 

 

 WHEREAS, the Common Council hereby finds and determines that the project described in 

the Initial Resolution is within the City's power to undertake and therefore serves a "public purpose" 

as that term is defined in Section 67.04(1)(b), Wisconsin Statutes;  

 

WHEREAS, due to certain provisions contained in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 

amended, it is necessary to issue such general obligation community development bonds on a taxable 

rather than tax-exempt basis; and 

 WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City hereby finds and determines that taxable 

general obligation community development bonds in an amount not to exceed $3,425,000 should be 

issued pursuant to the Initial Resolution. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City that: 

 

 Section 1.  Issuance of the Bonds.  The bonds authorized by the Initial Resolution shall be 

designated "Taxable General Obligation Community Development Bonds, Series 2018B" (the 

"Bonds") and the City shall issue Bonds in an amount not to exceed $3,425,000 for the purpose above 

specified. 

 

 Section 2.  Sale of the Bonds.  The Common Council hereby authorizes and directs that the 

Bonds be offered for public sale.  At a subsequent meeting, the Common Council shall consider such 

bids for the Bonds as may have been received and take action thereon. 

 

 Section 3.  Notice of Sale.  The City Clerk (in consultation with Ehlers & Associates, Inc. 

("Ehlers")) is hereby authorized and directed to cause the sale of the Bonds to be publicized at such 

times and in such manner as the City Clerk may determine and to cause copies of a complete Notice 

of Sale and other pertinent data to be forwarded to interested bidders as the City Clerk may determine. 

 

  

164 of 320



 - 2 -  

 Section 4. Official Statement.  The City Clerk (in consultation with Ehlers) shall also cause an 

Official Statement to be prepared and distributed.  The appropriate City officials shall determine when 

the Official Statement is final for purposes of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12 and 

shall certify said Official Statement, such certification to constitute full authorization of such Official 

Statement under this resolution. 

 

Adopted, approved and recorded May 14, 2018. 

 

_____________________________ 

Michael J. O'Keefe 

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh 

City Clerk 

(SEAL) 

165 of 320



166 of 320



167 of 320



CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: May 14, 2018                                                                          ITEM NO:  9. F.     
 
                           
TITLE:  Consider request to begin the process to hire a Police Officer due to an anticipated retirement; and 
action thereon 
 

 

 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  With an officer’s anticipated retirement in October, the Cedarburg Police Department 
will be one officer position below the usual staffing level of 20.  I am requesting permission to begin the 
process to hire a patrol officer. The process to hire an officer will run 6 to 9 months in length. 
 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Authorize the hiring of one officer to fill the vacancy created by the 
retirement. 
 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:   
 
 

 
BUDGETARY IMPACT:  Positive impact as the new officer will generally take 4 years to reach the top pay 
level. 
 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  None 
 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:    Chief Thomas J. Frank 
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:           Chief Frank, 375-7620 
 
 
 

 

168 of 320



CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

 

MEETING DATE: May 14, 2018                          ITEM NO:     9. G.                 

 

 

TITLE:  Consider 2017 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) for the Wastewater Treatment 

Plant and Resolution No. 2018-16 accepting the Report; and action thereon (Public Works & Sewerage Comm., 

5/10/18) 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   The CMAR is a DNR summary report used to determine the effectiveness of the 

sewerage system to meet DNR permit limits and to indicate areas of the system that may need improvement. In 

2017, no points were deducted from any categories in the report. No action for improvement in the system is 

needed. 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Acceptance of the 2017 CMAR and adoption of the Resolution. 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: The Public Works and Sewerage 

Commission met on May10, 2018 and discussed the CMAR summary and asked to move it to the City Council 

for action. 

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: None 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

 Resolution No. 2018-16 

 2017 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report Summary 

  

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Eric Hackert, CWRC Superintendent 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION, CONTACT: Eric Hackert, 262-375-7900. 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

169 of 320



 

 

 

CITY OF CEDARBURG 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-16 

 
2017 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report – Wastewater Treatment Facility 

 
 WHEREAS, the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources requires that the 
City of Cedarburg submit an annual Compliance Maintenance Report for its wastewater 
treatment facility; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the compliance maintenance program requires the adoption of a 
resolution by the governing body of the entity operating the wastewater treatment 
facility; 
   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of 
Cedarburg authorizes the appropriate municipal officers to inform the Department of 
Natural resources that the following actions were taken by the City of Cedarburg 
Common Council: 
 

1. Reviewed the Compliance Maintenance Annual Report which is attached 
to this resolution. 

 2. No further action is necessary. 
 
 Passed and adopted this 14th day of May, 2018. 
 
      
       __________________________ 
       Michael J. O’Keefe, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
       
Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney 

170 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Influent Flow and Loading

1. Monthly Average Flows and (C)BOD Loadings
1.1 Verify the following monthly flows and (C)BOD loadings to your facility.

Outfall No.
701

Influent Monthly
Average Flow, MGD

x Influent Monthly
Average (C)BOD

Concentration mg/L

x 8.34 = Influent Monthly
Average (C)BOD
Loading, lbs/day

January 2.0554 x 181 x 8.34 = 3,102
February 2.0361 x 182 x 8.34 = 3,088

March 2.7079 x 154 x 8.34 = 3,480
April 3.2933 x 116 x 8.34 = 3,185
May 2.9265 x 105 x 8.34 = 2,556
June 2.1809 x 168 x 8.34 = 3,058
July 1.9644 x 192 x 8.34 = 3,150

August 1.8260 x 193 x 8.34 = 2,941
September 1.6515 x 220 x 8.34 = 3,034

October 1.6158 x 202 x 8.34 = 2,716
November 1.5510 x 264 x 8.34 = 3,419
December 1.4647 x 350 x 8.34 = 4,274

2. Maximum Monthly Design Flow and Design (C)BOD Loading
2.1 Verify the design flow and loading for your facility.

Design Design Factor x % = % of Design
Max Month Design Flow, MGD 5.788 x 90 = 5.2092

x 100 = 5.788
Design (C)BOD, lbs/day 4587 x 90 = 4128.3

x 100 = 4587

2.2 Verify the number of times the flow and (C)BOD exceeded 90% or 100% of design, points
earned, and score:

Months
of

Influent

Number of times
flow was greater

than 90% of

Number of times
flow was greater

than 100% of

Number of times
(C)BOD was greater
than 90% of design

Number of times
(C)BOD was greater
than 100% of design

January 1 0 0 0 0
February 1 0 0 0 0

March 1 0 0 0 0
April 1 0 0 0 0
May 1 0 0 0 0
June 1 0 0 0 0
July 1 0 0 0 0

August 1 0 0 0 0
September 1 0 0 0 0

October 1 0 0 0 0
November 1 0 0 0 0
December 1 0 0 1 0

 Points per each 2 1 3 2
 Exceedances 0 0 1 0
 Points 0 0 3 0

 Total Number of Points 3

3

171 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

3. Flow Meter
3.1 Was the influent flow meter calibrated in the last year?

Yes Enter last calibration date (MM/DD/YYYY)
2017-02-22

No
If No, please explain:

4. Sewer Use Ordinance
4.1 Did your community have a sewer use ordinance that limited or prohibited the discharge of
excessive conventional pollutants ((C)BOD, SS, or pH) or toxic substances to the sewer from
industries, commercial users, hauled waste, or residences?

Yes
No

If No, please explain:

4.2 Was it necessary to enforce the ordinance?
Yes
No

If Yes, please explain:

5. Septage Receiving
5.1 Did you have requests to receive septage at your facility?
Septic Tanks Holding Tanks Grease Traps

Yes Yes Yes

No No No

5.2 Did you receive septage at your faclity? If yes, indicate volume in gallons.
Septic Tanks

Yes 0 gallons

No
Holding Tanks

Yes 4634400 gallons

No
Grease Traps

Yes 0 gallons

No
5.2.1 If yes to any of the above, please explain if plant performance is affected when receiving
any of these wastes.

Plant performance was slightly enhanced with increase in influent BOD.

6. Pretreatment
6.1 Did your facility experience operational problems, permit violations, biosolids quality concerns,
or hazardous situations in the sewer system or treatment plant that were attributable to
commercial or industrial discharges in the last year?

Yes
No

If yes, describe the situation and your community's response.

6.2 Did your facility accept hauled industrial wastes, landfill leachate, etc.? 172 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Yes
No

If yes, describe the types of wastes received and any procedures or other restrictions that were
in place to protect the facility from the discharge of hauled industrial wastes.

Total Points Generated 3
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 97

Section Grade A

173 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (BOD/CBOD)

1. Effluent (C)BOD Results
1.1 Verify the following monthly average effluent values, exceedances, and points for BOD or
CBOD

Outfall No.
001

Monthly
Average

Limit (mg/L)

90% of
Permit Limit
> 10 (mg/L)

Effluent Monthly
Average (mg/L)

Months of
Discharge

with a Limit

Permit Limit
Exceedance

90% Permit
Limit

Exceedance
January 15 13.5 4 1 0 0
February 15 13.5 4 1 0 0

March 15 13.5 4 1 0 0
April 15 13.5 4 1 0 0
May 10 10 4 1 0 0
June 10 10 3 1 0 0
July 10 10 4 1 0 0

August 10 10 3 1 0 0
September 10 10 2 1 0 0

October 10 10 2 1 0 0
November 15 13.5 3 1 0 0
December 15 13.5 5 1 0 0

* Equals limit if limit is <= 10

Months of discharge/yr 12
Points per each exceedance with 12 months of discharge 7 3
Exceedances 0 0
Points 0 0

Total number of points 0
NOTE: For systems that discharge intermittently to state waters, the points per monthly
exceedance for this section shall be based upon a multiplication factor of 12 months divided by
the number of months of discharge. Example: For a wastewater facility discharging only 6 months
of the year, the multiplication factor is 12/6 = 2.0

1.2 If any violations occurred, what action was taken to regain compliance?

0

2. Flow Meter Calibration
2.1 Was the effluent flow meter calibrated in the last year?

Yes Enter last calibration date (MM/DD/YYYY)
2017-02-22

No 
If No, please explain:

3. Treatment Problems
3.1 What problems, if any, were experienced over the last year that threatened treatment?

n/a

4. Other Monitoring and Limits
4.1 At any time in the past year was there an exceedance of a permit limit for any other pollutants
such as chlorides, pH, residual chlorine, fecal coliform, or metals?

Yes  
No 174 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

If Yes, please explain:

4.2 At any time in the past year was there a failure of an effluent acute or chronic whole effluent
toxicity (WET) test?

Yes  
No 

If Yes, please explain:

4.3 If the biomonitoring (WET) test did not pass, were steps taken to identify and/or reduce
source(s) of toxicity?

Yes  
No 
N/A 

Please explain unless not applicable:

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

175 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Total Suspended Solids)

1. Effluent Total Suspended Solids Results
1.1 Verify the following monthly average effluent values, exceedances, and points for TSS:

Outfall No.
001

Monthly
Average

Limit (mg/L)

90% of
Permit Limit
>10 (mg/L)

Effluent Monthly
Average (mg/L)

Months of
Discharge

with a Limit

Permit Limit
Exceedance

90% Permit
Limit

Exceedance
January 15 13.5 4 1 0 0
February 15 13.5 4 1 0 0

March 15 13.5 4 1 0 0
April 15 13.5 3 1 0 0
May 15 13.5 3 1 0 0
June 15 13.5 2 1 0 0
July 15 13.5 1 1 0 0

August 15 13.5 2 1 0 0
September 15 13.5 2 1 0 0

October 15 13.5 2 1 0 0
November 15 13.5 2 1 0 0
December 15 13.5 5 1 0 0

* Equals limit if limit is <= 10

Months of Discharge/yr 12
Points per each exceedance with 12 months of discharge: 7 3
Exceedances 0 0
Points 0 0

Total Number of Points 0
NOTE: For systems that discharge intermittently to state waters, the points per monthly
exceedance for this section shall be based upon a multiplication factor of 12 months divided by
the number of months of discharge.
 Example: For a wastewater facility discharging only 6 months of the year, the multiplication
factor is 12/6 = 2.0

1.2 If any violations occurred, what action was taken to regain compliance?

0

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

176 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Ammonia - NH3)

1. Effluent Ammonia Results
1.1 Verify the following monthly and weekly average effluent values, exceedances and points for
ammonia

Outfall No.
001

Monthly
Average

NH3
Limit

(mg/L)

Weekly
Average

NH3
Limit

(mg/L)

Effluent
Monthly
Average

NH3
(mg/L)

Monthly
Permit
Limit

Exceed
ance

Effluent
Weekly
Average
for Week

1

Effluent
Weekly
Average
for Week

2

Effluent
Weekly
Average
for Week

3

Effluent
Weekly
Average
for Week

4

Weekly
Permit
Limit

Exceed
ance

January 6.4 .012157895 0
February 6.4 .013 0

March 6.4 .007941176 0
April 4 .015176471 0
May 3.3 .312947368 0
June 3.3 .024625 0
July 3.3 .002833333 0

August 3.3 .016611111 0
September 3.3 .0298125 0

October 5.7 .026052632 0
November 6.4 .025411765 0
December 6.4 .043941176 0

Points per each exceedance of Monthly average: 10
Exceedances, Monthly: 0
Points: 0
Points per each exceedance of weekly average (when there is no monthly averge): 2.5
Exceedances, Weekly: 0
Points: 0

Total Number of Points 0
NOTE: Limit exceedances are considered for mothly OR weekly averages but not both. When a
monthly average limit exists it will be used to determine exceedances and generate points. This
will be true even if a weekly limit also exists. When a weekly average limit exists and a monthly
limit does not exist, the weekly limit will be used to determine exceedances and generate points.

1.2 If any violations occurred, what action was taken to regain compliance?

0

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

177 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Phosphorus)

1. Effluent Phosphorus Results
1.1 Verify the following monthly average effluent values, exceedances, and points for Phosphorus

Outfall No. 001 Monthly Average
phosphorus Limit

(mg/L)

Effluent Monthly
Average phosphorus

(mg/L)

Months of
Discharge with a

Limit

Permit Limit
Exceedance

January 1 0.242 1 0
February 1 0.310 1 0

March 1 0.319 1 0
April .8 0.429 1 0
May .8 0.253 1 0
June .8 0.143 1 0
July .8 0.168 1 0

August .8 0.303 1 0
September .8 0.513 1 0

October .8 0.378 1 0
November .8 0.142 1 0
December .8 0.214 1 0

 Months of Discharge/yr 12
 Points per each exceedance with 12 months of discharge: 10
 Exceedances 0

 Total Number of Points 0
NOTE: For systems that discharge intermittently to waters of the state, the points per monthly
exceedance for this section shall be based upon a multiplication factor of 12 months divided by
the number of months of discharge.
Example: For a wastewater facility discharging only 6 months of the year, the multiplication factor
is 12/6 = 2.0

1.2 If any violations occurred, what action was taken to regain compliance?

0

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

178 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Biosolids Quality and Management

1. Biosolids Use/Disposal
1.1 How did you use or dispose of your biosolids? (Check all that apply)

Land applied under your permit
Publicly Distributed Exceptional Quality Biosolids
Hauled to another permitted facility
Landfilled
Incinerated
Other

NOTE: If you did not remove biosolids from your system, please describe your system type such
as lagoons, reed beds, recirculating sand filters, etc.
1.1.1 If you checked Other, please describe:

3. Biosolids Metals
Number of biosolids outfalls in your WPDES permit:

3.1 For each outfall tested, verify the biosolids metal quality values for your facility during the last
calendar year.

Outfall No. 002 - AEROBIC LIQUID SLUDGE
Parameter 80%

of
Limit

H.Q.
Limit

Ceiling
Limit

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 80%
Value

High
Quality

Ceiling

Arsenic 41 75 .98 .49 3.27 1.66 0 0
Cadmium 39 85 <.6 1 1.85 <2.1 0 0
Copper 1500 4300 798 793 965 973 0 0
Lead 300 840 14.4 15.4 28.9 15.3 0 0

Mercury 17 57 .3 .666 .548 .528 0 0
Molybdenum 60 75 6.2 6.97 7.34 7.4 0 0

Nickel 336 420 <5.9 18.2 29.4 28.8 0 0
Selenium 80 100 <17.7 <8.26 <18.5 <16.1 0 0

Zinc 2800 7500 269 303 515 488 0 0

3.1.1 Number of times any of the metals exceeded the high quality limits OR 80% of the limit for
molybdenum, nickel, or selenium = 0
Exceedence Points

0     (0 Points)
1-2   (10 Points)
> 2   (15 Points)

3.1.2 If you exceeded the high quality limits, did you cumulatively track the metals loading at
each land application site? (check applicable box)

Yes
No (10 points)

N/A - Did not exceed limits or no HQ limit applies (0 points)
N/A - Did not land apply biosolids until limit was met (0 points)

3.1.3 Number of times any of the metals exceeded the ceiling limits = 0
Exceedence Points

0     (0 Points)
1     (10 Points)
> 1   (15 Points)

3.1.4 Were biosolids land applied which exceeded the ceiling limit?
Yes (20 Points)
No  (0 Points)

179 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

3.1.5 If any metal limit (high quality or ceiling) was exceeded at any time, what action was taken?
Has the source of the metals been identified?

0

4. Pathogen Control (per outfall):
4.1 Verify the following information. If any information is incorrect, use the Report Issue button
under the Options header in the left-side menu.

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 143,679
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 03/31/2017
Density: 304,457
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 179,924
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

180 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 221,281
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 111,111
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 185,185
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 222,833
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

181 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 512,821
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 486,522
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 375,722
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 458,501
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

182 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 664,557
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 424,649
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 304,457
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 03/31/2017
Density: 512,821
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

183 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 03/31/2017
Density: 486,522
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 03/31/2017
Density: 375,722
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 03/31/2017
Density: 458,501
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 03/31/2017
Density: 664,557
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

184 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 03/31/2017
Density: 424,649
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 400,000
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 143,679
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 400,000
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

185 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 179,924
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 221,281
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 111,111
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 185,185
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

186 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 222,833
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 143,679
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 400,000
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 179,924
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

187 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 221,281
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 111,111
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 185,185
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 222,833
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

188 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 143,679
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 400,000
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 179,924
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 221,281
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

189 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 111,111
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 185,185
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2017 - 06/30/2017
Density: 222,833
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 144,382
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

190 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 09/30/2017
Density: 134,466
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 09/30/2017
Density: 73,099
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 09/30/2017
Density: 63,694
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 09/30/2017
Density: 52,743
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

191 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 09/30/2017
Density: 111,111
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 09/30/2017
Density: 38,435
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 276,292
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 178,140
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

192 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 90,580
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 257,827
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 372,405
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 243,665
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

193 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 09/30/2017
Density: 38,435
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 38,435
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 111,111
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 52,743
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

194 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 63,694
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 73,099
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 38,435
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 134,466
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

195 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 10/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 144,382
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 10/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 243,665
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 10/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 372,405
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 10/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 257,827
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

196 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 10/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 90,658
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 10/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 178,140
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 10/01/2017 - 12/31/2017
Density: 276,292
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

4.2 If exceeded Class B limit or did not meet the process criteria at the time of land application.
4.2.1 Was the limit exceeded or the process criteria not met at the time of land application?

Yes (40 Points)
No

If yes, what action was taken?

0

5. Vector Attraction Reduction (per outfall):
5.1 Verify the following information. If any of the information is incorrect, use the Report Issue
button under the Options header in the left-side menu.

197 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Outfall Number: 002
Method Date: 03/31/2017
Option Used To Satisfy Requirement: Injection when land apply
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Limit (if applicable):
Results (if applicable):

Outfall Number: 002
Method Date: 06/30/2017
Option Used To Satisfy Requirement: Injection when land apply
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Limit (if applicable):
Results (if applicable):

Outfall Number: 002
Method Date: 06/30/2017
Option Used To Satisfy Requirement: Injection when land apply
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Limit (if applicable):
Results (if applicable):

Outfall Number: 002
Method Date: 06/30/2017
Option Used To Satisfy Requirement: Injection when land apply
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Limit (if applicable):
Results (if applicable):

Outfall Number: 002
Method Date: 12/31/2017
Option Used To Satisfy Requirement: Injection when land apply
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Limit (if applicable):
Results (if applicable):

198 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Outfall Number: 002
Method Date: 09/30/2017
Option Used To Satisfy Requirement: Injection when land apply
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Limit (if applicable):
Results (if applicable):

Outfall Number: 002
Method Date: 12/31/2017
Option Used To Satisfy Requirement: Injection when land apply
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Limit (if applicable):
Results (if applicable):

Outfall Number: 002
Method Date: 12/31/2017
Option Used To Satisfy Requirement: Injection when land apply
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Limit (if applicable):
Results (if applicable):

5.2 Was the limit exceeded or the process criteria not met at the time of land application?
Yes (40 Points)
No

If yes, what action was taken?

0

6. Biosolids Storage
6.1 How many days of actual, current biosolids storage capacity did your wastewater treatment
facility have either on-site or off-site?

>= 180 days (0 Points)
150 - 179 days (10 Points)
120 - 149 days (20 Points)
90 - 119 days (30 Points)
< 90 days (40 Points)
N/A (0 Points)

6.2 If you checked N/A above, explain why.

0

7. Issues
7.1 Describe any outstanding biosolids issues with treatment, use or overall management:

n/a

199 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

200 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Staffing and Preventative Maintenance (All Treatment Plants)

1. Plant Staffing
1.1 Was your wastewater treatment plant adequately staffed last year?

Yes
No

If No, please explain:

We were short two operators due to them taking other positions. We were fully staffed by the
end of the year.

Could use more help/staff for:

n/a

1.2 Did your wastewater staff have adequate time to properly operate and maintain the plant and
fulfill all wastewater management tasks including recordkeeping?

Yes
No

If No, please explain:

2. Preventative Maintenance
2.1 Did your plant have a documented AND implemented plan for preventative maintenance on
major equipment items?

Yes (Continue with question 2) 

No (40 points)


If No, please explain, then go to question 3:

2.2 Did this preventative maintenance program depict frequency of intervals, types of lubrication,
and other tasks necessary for each piece of equipment?

Yes
No (10 points) 

2.3 Were these preventative maintenance tasks, as well as major equipment repairs, recorded and
filed so future maintenance problems can be assessed properly?

Yes

Paper file system
Computer system
Both paper and computer system

No (10 points)

0

3. O&M Manual
3.1 Does your plant have a detailed O&M and Manufacturer Equipment Manuals that can be used
as a reference when needed?

Yes
No

4. Overall Maintenance /Repairs
4.1 Rate the overall maintenance of your wastewater plant.

Excellent
Very good
Good
Fair
Poor

Describe your rating:
201 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

The treatment center is showing signs of it's age, but continues to operate as designed.

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

202 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Operator Certification and Education

1. Operator-In-Charge
1.1 Did you have a designated operator-in-charge during the report year?

Yes (0 points) 
No  (20 points) 

Name:
ERIC HACKERT

Certification No:
10352

0

2. Certification Requirements
2.1 In accordance with Chapter NR 114.56 and 114.57, Wisconsin Administrative Code, what level
and subclass(es) were required for the operator-in-charge (OIC) to operate the wastewater
treatment plant and what level and subclass(es) were held by the operator-in-charge?

Sub
Class

SubClass Description WWTP OIC
Advanced OIT Basic Advanced

A1 Suspended Growth Processes X X
A2 Attached Growth Processes X
A3 Recirculating Media Filters
A4 Ponds, Lagoons and Natural X
A5 Anaerobic Treatment Of Liquid
B Solids Separation X X
C Biological Solids/Sludges X X
P Total Phosphorus X X
N Total Nitrogen
D Disinfection X X
L Laboratory X X
U Unique Treatment Systems X
SS Sanitary Sewage Collection X NA NA NA

2.2 Was the operator-in-charge certified at the appropriate level and subclass(es) to operate this
plant? (Note: Certification in subclass SS, N and A5 not required in 2016; subclass SS is basic level
only.)

Yes (0 points) 
No  (20 points) 

0

3. Succession Planning
3.1 In the event of the loss of your designated operator-in-charge, did you have a contingency plan
to ensure the continued proper operation and maintenance of the plant that includes one or more
of the following options (check all that apply)?

One or more additional certified operators on staff 
An arrangement with another certified operator 
An arrangement with another community with a certified operator 
An operator on staff who has an operator-in-training certificate for your plant and is expected to
be certified within one year
A consultant to serve as your certified operator 
None of the above (20 points) 

If "None of the above" is selected, please explain:

0

4. Continuing Education Credits
203 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

4.1 If you had a designated operator-in-charge, was the operator-in-charge earning Continuing
Education Credits at the following rates?
OIT and Basic Certification:

Averaging 6 or more CECs per year. 
Averaging less than 6 CECs per year. 

Advanced Certification:
Averaging 8 or more CECs per year. 
Averaging less than 8 CECs per year. 

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

204 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Financial Management

1. Provider of Financial Information
Name:  

Christy Mertes, City Administrator/Treasurer

Telephone:
262-375-7606 (XXX) XXX-XXXX

E-Mail Address
(optional):

cmertes@ci.cedarburg.wi.us

2. Treatment Works Operating Revenues
2.1 Are User Charges or other revenues sufficient to cover O&M expenses for your wastewater
treatment plant AND/OR collection system ?

Yes (0 points) 

No (40 points)

If No, please explain:

2.2 When was the User Charge System or other revenue source(s) last reviewed and/or revised?
Year:

2017
0-2 years ago (0 points) 

3 or more years ago (20 points)

N/A (private facility) 

2.3 Did you have a special account (e.g., CWFP required segregated Replacement Fund, etc.) or
financial resources available for repairing or replacing equipment for your wastewater treatment
plant and/or collection system?

Yes (0 points) 

No (40 points) 

0

REPLACEMENT FUNDS [PUBLIC MUNICIPAL FACILITIES SHALL COMPLETE QUESTION 3]
3. Equipment Replacement Funds
3.1 When was the Equipment Replacement Fund last reviewed and/or revised?
Year:

2017
1-2 years ago (0 points)

3 or more years ago (20 points)

N/A

If N/A, please explain:

3.2 Equipment Replacement Fund Activity

3.2.1  Ending Balance Reported on Last Year's CMAR $ 2,594,235.87

3.2.2 Adjustments - if necessary (e.g. earned interest,
audit correction, withdrawal of excess funds, increase
making up previous shortfall, etc.)

$ 0.00

3.2.3 Adjusted January 1st Beginning Balance $ 2,594,235.87

3.2.4 Additions to Fund (e.g. portion of User Fee,
earned interest, etc.) + $ 231,514.91

205 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

3.2.5 Subtractions from Fund (e.g., equipment
replacement, major repairs - use description box
3.2.6.1 below*) - $ 460,136.87

3.2.6 Ending Balance as of December 31st for CMAR
Reporting Year $ 2,365,613.91

All Sources: This ending balance should include all
Equipment Replacement Funds whether held in a
bank account(s), certificate(s) of deposit, etc.

3.2.6.1 Indicate adjustments, equipment purchases, and/or major repairs from 3.2.5 above.

Replaced UV bulbs on Bank (A). Purchased new jetter/vac truck. Rebuilt raw pumps and check
valves. Replaced two bearings on the oxidation ditch. Purchased new lawnmower/snowblower.
Purchased new mainline televising camera and push camera.

3.3  What amount should be in your Replacement Fund? $ 2,365,613.91
Please note: If you had a CWFP loan, this amount was originally based on the Financial
Assistance Agreement (FAA) and should be regularly updated as needed. Further calculation
instructions and an example can be found by clicking the SectionInstructions link under Info
header in the left-side menu.

3.3.1 Is the December 31 Ending Balance in your Replacement Fund above, (#3.2.6) equal to, or
greater than the amount that should be in it (#3.3)?

Yes
No

If No, please explain.

0

4. Future Planning
4.1 During the next ten years, will you be involved in formal planning for upgrading, rehabilitating,
or new construction of your treatment facility or collection system?

Yes  -  If Yes, please provide major project information, if not already listed below.

No

Project
#

Project Description Estimated
Cost

Approximate
Construction

Year
1 Madison - Walnut to Pine 35000 2019

2 St. John Ave will have 1444 ft of sewer replaced and 2 manholes. 190000 2023
3 Highland Drive will have 2135 ft of forcemain and sewer replaced and upsized and 7

manholes will be replaced.
290000 2020

4 Sunnyside - Edgewater to Highland 153500 2021
5 Hilgen/Jackson - Washington to Spring 125000 2021
6 Portland Road - Hilbert to Highland 45000 2019
7 Fair St - Evergreen to Washington 70000 2024
8 Sommerset Road Pioneer to Wirth 70000 2020
9 New lift Station and force main at Highland Rd 1,250,000 2018
10 New digestor blower with level monitoring controls 80000 2018
11 Cambridge Ave., Lexington St., Aspen Dr., Willowbrooke Dr. Lynwood Lane, Arbor

Drive, Crescent Drive and Glenwood Drive.
250000 2019

12 New Bar Screen and Washer press. 150000 2019

5. Financial Management General Comments

none.

ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND USE
206 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

6. Collection System
6.1 Energy Usage
6.1.1 Enter the monthly energy usage from the different energy sources:

COLLECTION SYSTEM PUMPAGE: Total Power Consumed
Number of Municipally Owned Pump/Lift Stations: 11

Electricity Consumed
(kWh)

Natural Gas Consumed
(therms)

January 25,733 100

February 23,163 79

March 27,180 54

April 24,757 54

May 22,575 21

June 19,204 16

July 17,878 40

August 19,072 20

September 18,009 17

October 17,261 21

November 17,760 14

December 21,537 76

Total 254,129 512
Average 21,177 43

6.1.2 Comments:

none.

6.2 Energy Related Processes and Equipment
6.2.1 Indicate equipment and practices utilized at your pump/lift stations (Check all that apply):

Comminution or Screening
Extended Shaft Pumps
Flow Metering and Recording
Pneumatic Pumping
SCADA System
Self-Priming Pumps
Submersible Pumps
Variable Speed Drives
Other:

6.2.2 Comments:

none.

6.3 Has an Energy Study been performed for your pump/lift stations?
No
Yes

Year:
207 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

By Whom:

Describe and Comment:

6.4 Future Energy Related Equipment

6.4.1 What energy efficient equipment or practices do you have planned for the future for your
pump/lift stations?

Installing new submersible pumps and variable speed drives at Highland Lift station.

7. Treatment Facility
7.1 Energy Usage
7.1.1 Enter the monthly energy usage from the different energy sources:

TREATMENT PLANT: Total Power Consumed/Month
Electricity
Consumed

(kWh)

Total Influent
Flow (MG)

Electricity
Consumed/

Flow
(kWh/MG)

Total Influent
BOD (1000 lbs)

Electricity
Consumed/

Total Influent
BOD

(kWh/1000lbs)

Natural Gas
Consumed
(therms)

January 110,189 63.72 1,729 96.16 1,146 1,298

February 87,314 57.01 1,532 86.46 1,010 979

March 99,766 83.94 1,189 107.88 925 665

April 84,289 98.80 853 95.55 882 652

May 105,879 90.72 1,167 79.24 1,336 216

June 106,108 65.43 1,622 91.74 1,157 25

July 106,546 60.90 1,750 97.65 1,091 4

August 105,595 56.61 1,865 91.17 1,158 2

September 98,263 49.55 1,983 91.02 1,080 5

October 92,888 50.09 1,854 84.20 1,103 6

November 85,698 46.53 1,842 102.57 836 140

December 100,116 45.41 2,205 132.49 756 610

Total 1,182,651 768.71 1,156.13 4,602

Average 98,554 64.06 1,633 96.34 1,040 384

7.1.2 Comments:

none.

7.2 Energy Related Processes and Equipment
7.2.1 Indicate equipment and practices utilized at your treatment facility (Check all that apply):

Aerobic Digestion
Anaerobic Digestion
Biological Phosphorus Removal
Coarse Bubble Diffusers
Dissolved O2 Monitoring and Aeration Control
Effluent Pumping
Fine Bubble Diffusers
Influent Pumping 208 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Mechanical Sludge Processing
Nitrification
SCADA System
UV Disinfection
Variable Speed Drives
Other:

7.2.2 Comments:

none.

7.3 Future Energy Related Equipment

7.3.1 What energy efficient equipment or practices do you have planned for the future for your
treatment facility?

Replace aerobic digester blower. Replacing Bar screen and washer/press.

8. Biogas Generation

8.1 Do you generate/produce biogas at your facility?
No
Yes

If Yes, how is the biogas used (Check all that apply):
Flared Off
Building Heat
Process Heat
Generate Electricity
Other:

9. Energy Efficiency Study

9.1 Has an Energy Study been performed for your treatment facility?
No
Yes

Entire facility
Year:

2017
By Whom:

Focus on Energy
Describe and Comment:

none.

Part of the facility
Year:

By Whom: 209 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Describe and Comment:

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

210 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Sanitary Sewer Collection Systems

1. Capacity, Management, Operation, and Maintenance (CMOM) Program
1.1 Do you have a CMOM program that is being implemented?

Yes
No

If No, explain:

1.2 Do you have a CMOM program that contains all the applicable components and items
according to Wisc. Adm Code NR 210.23 (4)?

Yes
No (30 points)
N/A

If No or N/A, explain:

1.3 Does your CMOM program contain the following components and items? (check the
components and items that apply)

Goals [NR 210.23 (4)(a)]
Describe the major goals you had for your collection system last year:

Clean 50% of sanitary sewer system. Clean 100% of the storm catch basins.Visually inspect all
11 lift stations weekly. Clean all lift station and plant wet wells 2 times per year. Root foam
2500 feet of sanitary system annually. Inspect 30% of manholes annually and repair as needed.
Televise 25 % of the sanitary sewer system each year. Repair small sanitary sewer leaks with

lining as identified. Continue with our 10 year sewer replacement program.

Did you accomplish them?
Yes
No

If No, explain:

Organization [NR 210.23 (4) (b)]

Does this chapter of your CMOM include:

Organizational structure and positions (eg. organizational chart and position descriptions)
Internal and external lines of communication responsibilities
Person(s) responsible for reporting overflow events to the department and the public

Legal Authority [NR 210.23 (4) (c)]
What is the legally binding document that regulates the use of your sewer system?
Cedarburg Sewer Ordinance
If you have a Sewer Use Ordinance or other similar document, when was it last reviewed and
revised? (MM/DD/YYYY) 2017-11-09
Does your sewer use ordinance or other legally binding document address the following:

Private property inflow and infiltration
New sewer and building sewer design, construction, installation, testing and inspection
Rehabilitated sewer and lift station installation, testing and inspection
Sewage flows satellite system and large private users are monitored and controlled, as
necessary
Fat, oil and grease control
Enforcement procedures for sewer use non-compliance

Operation and Maintenance [NR 210.23 (4) (d)]
Does your operation and maintenance program and equipment include the following: 211 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Equipment and replacement part inventories
Up-to-date sewer system map
A management system (computer database and/or file system) for collection system
information for O&M activities, investigation and rehabilitation
A description of routine operation and maintenance activities (see question 2 below)
Capacity assessment program
Basement back assessment and correction
Regular O&M training

Design and Performance Provisions [NR 210.23 (4) (e)]

What standards and procedures are established for the design, construction, and inspection of
the sewer collection system, including building sewers and interceptor sewers on private
property?

State Plumbing Code, DNR NR 110 Standards and/or local Municipal Code Requirements
Construction, Inspection, and Testing
Others:

Overflow Emergency Response Plan [NR 210.23 (4) (f)]

Does your emergency response capability include:

Responsible personnel communication procedures
Response order, timing and clean-up
Public notification protocols
Training
Emergency operation protocols and implementation procedures

Annual Self-Auditing of your CMOM Program [NR 210.23 (5)]

Special Studies Last Year (check only those that apply):

Infiltration/Inflow (I/I) Analysis
Sewer System Evaluation Survey (SSES)
Sewer Evaluation and Capacity Managment Plan (SECAP)
Lift Station Evaluation Report
Others:

0

2. Operation and Maintenance
2.1 Did your sanitary sewer collection system maintenance program include the following
maintenance activities? Complete all that apply and indicate the amount maintained.
Cleaning 50   % of system/year

Root removal .8   % of system/year

Flow monitoring 10   % of system/year

Smoke testing 0   % of system/year

Sewer line
televising 24   % of system/year

Manhole
inspections 35   % of system/year

Lift station O&M 52   # per L.S./year

Manhole
rehabilitation 3   % of manholes rehabbed

Mainline
rehabilitation 6   % of sewer lines rehabbed

212 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Private sewer
inspections 5   % of system/year

Private sewer I/I
removal 0   % of private services

River or water
crossings 0   % of pipe crossings evaluated or maintained

Please include additional comments about your sanitary sewer collection system below:

none.

3. Performance Indicators
3.1 Provide the following collection system and flow information for the past year.

33.4 Total actual amount of precipitation last year in inches

2.8 Annual average precipitation (for your location)

57 Miles of sanitary sewer

11 Number of lift stations 

0 Number of lift station failures 

0 Number of sewer pipe failures

2 Number of basement backup occurrences

16 Number of complaints

2.1060 Average daily flow in MGD (if available)

3.293 Peak monthly flow in MGD (if available) 

.004887 Peak hourly flow in MGD (if available)

3.2 Performance ratios for the past year:
0.00 Lift station failures (failures/year)

0.00 Sewer pipe failures (pipe failures/sewer mile/yr)

0.00 Sanitary sewer overflows (number/sewer mile/yr)

0.04 Basement backups (number/sewer mile)

0.28 Complaints (number/sewer mile)

1.6 Peaking factor ratio (Peak Monthly:Annual Daily Avg)

0.0 Peaking factor ratio (Peak Hourly:Annual Daily Avg)

4. Overflows

LIST OF SANITARY SEWER (SSO) AND TREATMENT FACILITY (TFO) OFERFLOWS REPORTED **
Date Location Cause Estimated

Volume (MG)

 None reported

** If there were any SSOs or TFOs that are not listed above, please contact the DNR and stop work
on this section until corrected.

5. Infiltration / Inflow (I/I)
5.1 Was infiltration/inflow (I/I) significant in your community last year?

Yes
No

If Yes, please describe:

213 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

5.2 Has infiltration/inflow and resultant high flows affected performance or created problems in
your collection system, lift stations, or treatment plant at any time in the past year?

Yes
No

If Yes, please describe:

5.3 Explain any infiltration/inflow (I/I) changes this year from previous years:

Continuing to monitor flow, and continuing to replace infrastructure as needed.

5.4 What is being done to address infiltration/inflow in your collection system?

The city annually repairs or replaces mainline sewer. We have begun a program to spot repair
and fix leaking manholes with our own staff.

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

214 of 320



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/1/2018 2017

Grading Summary
WPDES No: 0020222

SECTIONS LETTER GRADE GRADE POINTS WEIGHTING
FACTORS

SECTION
POINTS

 Influent A 4 3 12
 BOD/CBOD A 4 10 40
 TSS A 4 5 20
 Ammonia A 4 5 20
 Phosphorus A 4 3 12
 Biosolids A 4 5 20
 Staffing/PM A 4 1 4
 OpCert A 4 1 4
 Financial A 4 1 4
 Collection A 4 3 12

 TOTALS 37 148
 GRADE POINT AVERAGE (GPA) = 4.00

Notes:
A = Voluntary Range (Response Optional)
B = Voluntary Range (Response Optional)
C = Recommendation Range (Response Required)
D = Action Range (Response Required)
F = Action Range (Response Required)

215 of 320



CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: May 14, 2018                                                          ITEM NO:   9. H. 
 
                           
TITLE:   Consider process/policy when “Class B” liquor licenses become available; and action thereon 

 
 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:   The “Class B” liquor of Silver Creek Brewery will become available on July 1st when 
its existing license from the City expires.    Following changes made by 2011 Wis. Act 32, a brewery may sell 
fermented malt beverages at retail without having to obtain a municipal beer license; a brewery that held a 
liquor license as of June 1, 2011 may continue to sell intoxicating liquor without a municipal liquor license; a 
brewery may not sell intoxicating liquor unless it has been “grandfathered in.”  Silver Creek Brewery has held 
a brewery permit from the Department of Revenue for several years, and is "grandfathered in" to sell 
intoxicating liquor at the brewery premises under sec. 125.29(3)(h), Wis. Stats. without a municipal license.  
 
Therefore, this license will be available if the Council would like to grant it to another business. 
 
At the request of Council Member Arnett, the Clerk’s Office has been keeping a “waiting list” for those 
interested in obtaining a liquor license.  Currently there are two people on the waiting list; one of those has 
recently expressed interest in obtaining a full liquor license for a Vietnamese restaurant in the south end of the 
City.  The Clerk’s Office is seeking direction as to how to proceed when this license becomes available and for 
other liquor licenses that may become available in the future.  I.e. should we contact the two businesses on the 
waiting, should we advertise, etc…. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:    N/A 
 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:   N/A 
 
 

 
BUDGETARY IMPACT:  $500 annual “Class B” liquor license fee. 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS: None 
 

     
INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:     Connie McHugh, 375-7606 
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:           Connie McHugh 
 
 
 

 

216 of 320



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE:    May 14, 2018                                                                           ITEM NO:  9. I. 

                   

 

         

TITLE:  Consider request for funds to add power at Cedar Creek Park for Summer Sounds; and action thereon 

 

 
 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  Summer Sounds, Inc. has requested that we add power to the current electric box at 

Cedar Creek Park to accommodate the vendors during the Friday night concerts.  Lyneis electric proposes to 

build a portable unit that is similar to the ones they have built for festivals.  This is a cheaper alternative to 

adding a new electric box at the site. 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  None 

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  $1,160, plus electrical costs, which are not budgeted 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  Quote from Lyneis Electric 

             

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:   Summer Sounds, Inc. 

 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  Mikko Hilvo, Director of Parks, Recreation, & Forestry 

                                                                  
 

 

217 of 320



A Lyneis Electric LLC. 
            7806 Pleasant Valley Rd 

                         Saukville, Wisconsin 53080 
 

Telephone:  (262) 689.0666                                       email: 
alyneis@hotmail.com   
  

May 8, 2018 
 
City of Cedarburg 
W63 N645 Washington Ave. 
Cedarburg, WI 53012 

Mikko Hilvo 
 
Re:  Electrical Wiring For Electrical Cart for City Park:  
 
We propose to furnish labor and material to wire the following: 
    

1) One (1) weather proof cart with weather proof panel and weather proof 120 volt 
GFCI receptacles, and cord for hook up, for temporary hook up at City Park; 

2) One (1) weather proof receptacle on 100 amp breaker on existing pedestal. 
 
The above for the sum of:     $1160.00 
 
 
ANY ADDITIONS OR CHANGES TO THIS PROPOSAL MUST BE ACCOMPANIED BY A 
SIGNED CHANGE ORDER. THESE CHANGES WILL BE CONSIDERED “EXTRAS” AND 
WILL BE BILLED ON A TIME AND MATERIAL BASIS. 
 
Due to rapid fluctuations in material costs the above proposal may be withdrawn by us if 
not accepted within thirty (30) days.   
 
Payment schedule: 100% upon completion of our work. 
 
Interest charges of 1-½% per month will be rendered on all balances after ten (10) days. 
 
If full payment is not received within 15 days, a one-time processing fee may be added to 
the previous balance and the account may be referred to a collection agency. 
 
NOTICE OF LIEN RIGHTS REQUIRED BY WISCONSIN LAW. As required by the 
Wisconsin Construction Lien Law, builders hereby notifies owner that persons or 
companies furnishing labor or materials for the construction on owner’s land may have 
lien rights on owner’s land and building if not paid. Those entitled to lien rights, in 
addition to the undersigned builder, are those who contract directly with the owner or 
those who give the owner notice within 60 days after they first furnish labor or materials 
for the construction. Accordingly, owner probably will receive notices from those who 
furnish labor or materials for the construction, and should give a copy of each notice 

218 of 320



May 8, 2018                          Page 2 of 2 

 
 

Telephone:  (262) 689.0666                                                               email: 
alyneis@hotmail.com  

received to his mortgage lender, if any. Builder agrees to cooperate with the owner and his 
lender, if any, to see that all potential lien claimants are duly paid. 
 
                              
 
 

     A Lyneis Electric LLC 
 
          By: _____________________ 
                      Andrew Lyneis 
          ME/CEI 160551 
              EC 1319176 
 
NOTE:  If this bid meets with your approval, please sign the following and return one copy to 
our office. 
 
The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are 
authorized to do the work as specified. 
 
Acceptance dated: ________________, 2018 
 
 
 
Signed: _____________________________ 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

219 of 320



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE:      May 14, 2018                                                       ITEM NO:  9. J. 
                           
 
 
TITLE: Consider quote received for construction of the Prairie View Park Shelter; and action thereon 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  Recent bid opening for construction of the prairie view shelter received zero bids.  With 
the shelter already on order and being delivered in late May I reached out to two companies that the City has 
done work with in the past to see if they are interested in the project.  One company said that they would not 
have time this year to do the work.  The other did provide us a quote.  It is my recommendation that we contract 
with Dahlman construction company.  Their quote is well within the budgeted amount for this project. 
 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  None 
 
 
 
BUDGETARY IMPACT:  $85,920 – capital improvements 
 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS:              Quote from Dahlman Construction 
             
 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Summer Sounds, Inc. 
 
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  Mikko Hilvo, Director of Parks, Recreation, & Forestry 

                                                                  
 

 

220 of 320



221 of 320



222 of 320



223 of 320



224 of 320



225 of 320



226 of 320



227 of 320



228 of 320



229 of 320



230 of 320



231 of 320



232 of 320



233 of 320



234 of 320



235 of 320



236 of 320



ORDINANCE NO. 2018-04 

 

An Ordinance Relating Blocking of Sidewalks 

 

The Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, hereby ordains as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1.  Section 11-2-7 of the Municipal Code of the City of Cedarburg is hereby 
amended as follows: 

 

SEC. 11-2-7 OBSTRUCTING STREETS AND SIDEWALKS PROHIBITED.  
 
(a)  Obstructing Streets. No person shall stand, sit, loaf or loiter or engage in any sport or 

exercise on any public street, bridge or public ground within the City in such manner as 
to prevent or obstruct the free passage of pedestrian or vehicular traffic thereon or to 
prevent or hinder free ingress or egress to or from any place of business or amusement, 
church, public hall or meeting place.  

(b)  Blocking Sidewalk Prohibited. No person shall block any sidewalk by obstructing the 
same so that it is impossible for a pedestrian to travel along the sidewalk without leaving 
the sidewalk and walking on adjacent property or on the street.  Chairs and other like 
obstacles for viewing of the 4th of July parade shall not be placed on any sidewalk prior to 
7:00 p.m. the night before the parade.  No items shall be affixed or attached to any trees,   
plantings, or fixtures in the right-of-way. 

 
SECTION 2.  This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication as 

provided by law. 
 Passed and adopted this 14th day of May, 2018. 
 
 
                                                     ________________________________ 
                                                     Michael O’Keefe, Mayor    
Countersigned:    
 
______________________________ 
Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form:  
 
_________________________________ 
Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney  
 
 
 

237 of 320



238 of 320



239 of 320



240 of 320



241 of 320



242 of 320



243 of 320



244 of 320



245 of 320



246 of 320



247 of 320



248 of 320



249 of 320



250 of 320



251 of 320



252 of 320



253 of 320



254 of 320



255 of 320



256 of 320



257 of 320



258 of 320



259 of 320



260 of 320



261 of 320



262 of 320



263 of 320



264 of 320



265 of 320



266 of 320



267 of 320



268 of 320



269 of 320



270 of 320



271 of 320



272 of 320



273 of 320



274 of 320



275 of 320



276 of 320



277 of 320



278 of 320



279 of 320



280 of 320



281 of 320



282 of 320



283 of 320



284 of 320



285 of 320



286 of 320



287 of 320



288 of 320



289 of 320



290 of 320



291 of 320



292 of 320



293 of 320



294 of 320



295 of 320



296 of 320



297 of 320



298 of 320



299 of 320



300 of 320



301 of 320



302 of 320



303 of 320



304 of 320



305 of 320



306 of 320



307 of 320



308 of 320



309 of 320



310 of 320



311 of 320



312 of 320



313 of 320



314 of 320



315 of 320



316 of 320



317 of 320



318 of 320



319 of 320



PROCLAMATION 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedarburg is home to more than 2,500 citizens 60 years of age or older; 
and 

WHEREAS, the older citizens in the City of Cedarburg and throughout the nation are an 
increasing population with evolving needs; and 

WHEREAS, older persons are valuable members of our society who enhance our communities 
and personal lives; and 

WHEREAS, the increasing number of baby boomers reaching traditional retirement age 
highlights the need for increased support of older adults; and  

WHEREAS, our older citizens of today and tomorrow promise to be among the most active and 
involved older adult populations in our nation’s history; and  

WHEREAS, it is the responsibility of this and all U.S. communities to work collaboratively to 
address older adults’ unique health and long-term care challenges; and 

WHEREAS, communities can improve older citizens’ overall quality of life by helping them: 

 Make behavioral changes in their lifestyles than can reduce the risk of disease, disability,
and injury;

 Obtain the tools they need to make informed decisions about, and gain better access to,
existing health and long-term care options in their communities;

 Have more options to avoid placement in nursing homes and remain at home as long as
possible.

NOW THEREFORE, I, Michael J. O’Keefe, Mayor of the City of Cedarburg, Ozaukee County, 
Wisconsin, do hereby proclaim May 2018 to be Older Americans Month and urge everyone to take time 
this May to honor our older adults and the professionals, family members, and citizens who care for 
them.  Our efforts can improve the lives of our older citizens and help pave the way for future 
generations. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed the official seal 
of the City of Cedarburg, this 14th day of May 2018. 

____________________________ 
Michael J. O’Keefe, Mayor 

Attest: 

______________________________ 
Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

320 of 320


	CC Agenda 05-14-18 Final
	CC Minutes 04-30-18
	Communication Letter - Final Draft
	Financial Statements - Final Draft
	TIF No. 3 Comp - Final Draft
	Cedarburg Series 2018A G.O. Notes Presale Report_5-14-2018
	Cedarburg Series 2018B Taxable G.O. Bonds Presale Report_5-14-2018
	Res 2018-12 - Sale of Promissory Notes $1.245M
	Res 2018-13 - Initial Resolution $3.425M
	Res 2018-14 - Notice to Electors
	Res 2018-15 - Sale of Bonds $3.425M
	Operator Denial - Hall
	Blue Sheet - Police Officer Hiring
	Blue Sheet - CMAR
	Res 2018-16 - CMAR
	CMAR Report
	Influent Flow and Loading
	Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (BOD/CBOD)
	Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Total Suspended Solids)
	Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Ammonia - NH3)
	Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Phosphorus)
	Biosolids Quality and Management
	Staffing and Preventative Maintenance (All Treatment Plants)
	Operator Certification and Education
	Financial Management
	Sanitary Sewer Collection Systems
	Grading Summary

	Blue Sheet - Liquor License Process
	Blue Sheet - Power at Cedar Creek Park
	Lyneis Quote - Power at Cedar Creek
	Blue Sheet - Prairie View Shelter
	Dahlman Quote - Park Shelter
	Ethics Code - City
	Bills
	Ord 2018-04 - Placement of Chairs - 4th of July Parade
	Council Minutes 02-25-2002 - 4th of July Parade
	4th of July parade letter - P Niles
	CA Report 05 10 18
	1st Quarter Financial Report
	Building Inspectors Report - April 2018
	Fire Inspection Report - April 2018
	Proclamation - Older Americans Month



